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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say

          3  that I personally have to apologize for my

          4  colleague, Council Member Provenzano, Madeline

          5  Provenzano, because originally this hearing was

          6  supposed to be a joint hearing between the Committee

          7  on Health and Council Member Provenzano has been

          8  appointed by the Speaker as the Chair of the

          9  Subcommittee on Federal Affairs of the Council, and

         10  since most, if not all but most of the issues really

         11  relates to the federal government in terms of moving

         12  forward, I want to apologize to the Councilperson,

         13  as we were getting ready in oversight, so this is

         14  really a joint hearing between my Committee and the

         15  Subcommittee on Federal Affairs.

         16                 Also, there is another meeting going

         17  on next door which both she and I other members are

         18  members of the Public Safety Committee, of which the

         19  Police Commissioner is testifying before the

         20  Committee, and so I know Council Member Leffler who

         21  is a member of this Committee chairs that Committee

         22  and so I will make sure that we mark him present

         23  while he is doing the same outside for both myself

         24  and Madeline.

         25                 Good afternoon, and welcome, again. I
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          2  am Victor Robles, I am the Chair of the Committee on

          3  Health. And, again, I repeat that this hearing is a

          4  joint hearing between this Committee and the

          5  Subcommittee on Federal Affairs.

          6                 Today the Committee will hold an

          7  oversight hearing on mad cow disease. We will be

          8  receiving from the New York City Department of

          9  Health -- we will be reviewing the New York City

         10  Department of Health's compliance with the City

         11  Health Code regarding the disease monitoring and

         12  control.

         13                 First of all, I want to thank Council

         14  Member Steve Fiala for bringing this issue to the

         15  Council by way of this resolution, Resolution Intro.

         16  1693-A. Let me just note that this resolution is an

         17  A version because technical changes were made to the

         18  wording of the title, no substantive changes were

         19  made.

         20                 Since 1986, there has been continuing

         21  reports of mad cow disease in European cattle.

         22  Unfortunately, since 1996 there has also been

         23  mounting evidence that a number of Europeans have

         24  developed and have been infected with the human

         25  disease of that disease known as "Mad Cow," after
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          2  consuming contaminated meat.

          3                 While no evidence of either mad cow

          4  or its human variants have been detected in the

          5  United States, the United States Department of

          6  Agriculture has been monitoring cattle for the

          7  presence of mad cow disease for over ten years.

          8                 The emergence of mad cow disease in

          9  Europe, as well as recent allegations regarding

         10  improper inspection of meat in New York City by the

         11  United States Department of Agriculture affect the

         12  health of all New Yorkers and is thus a concern of

         13  the Committee on Health.

         14                 Today this Committee will address

         15  these issues focusing on the role federal, state and

         16  local government agencies play in ensuring the

         17  safety of meat in New York City.

         18                 I would like to thank Dr. John

         19  Huntley, the Chief Veterinarian of the Division of

         20  Animal Industry of the New York State Department of

         21  Agriculture and Markets for coming to speak with us

         22  today about the mad cow disease and the role the

         23  State is playing in monitoring its presence here.

         24                 Dr. Huntley's testimony will be

         25  followed by Dr. Neal Cohen, Commissioner of the New
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          2  York City Department of Health, who will speak about

          3  what the City is doing to monitor the impact mad cow

          4  disease may have on the City of New York.

          5                 And let me just say that, again, I

          6  want to personally thank Council Member Steve Fiala

          7  who came to me and brought to my attention where

          8  allegedly a person, and I don't know whether a

          9  constituent, but a person in Staten Island who they

         10  suspected may have the symptoms of mad cow disease,

         11  and, of course, I attempted to, and I immediately

         12  reached out to Commissioner Neal Cohen, which not

         13  only assured me that he is not aware of any report

         14  of such case, and while Steve kept coming to me,

         15  what I decided to do, and I challenged him and I

         16  thanked him because I asked him that he should

         17  submit a resolution so that we can have an

         18  oversight, and that is why we have this today.

         19                 In the interim, as you know, there

         20  have been reports about the federal government and

         21  even the state in terms of their monitoring their

         22  inspections and what have you.

         23                 Second, I want to again say that I

         24  thank my colleague, Council Member Provenzano, and

         25  one of the things that we intend from this joint
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          2  hearing to do is, that after it is all said and

          3  done, we are going to analyze the testimony before

          4  us, and then most probably we will have a report

          5  that we will put out where we will make

          6  recommendations both, according upon whether it is

          7  the federal United States Department of Agriculture,

          8  or the State Department, in terms of loop holes

          9  where we think we should be addressing.

         10                 In terms of the City of New York, of

         11  course I work on a daily basis with Commissioner

         12  Neal Cohen and the Department of Health, and, so, I

         13  assure you that when it comes to the City of New

         14  York, we will also make sure we monitor that.

         15                 Let me also say, when people say why

         16  are we having this hearing -- well, some of us are

         17  coming out of the West Nile, that was not the West

         18  Nile, it was first St. Louis, and then it was

         19  another name before that, and rather than waiting

         20  until something happens, I think it is fair that

         21  this Committee, in cooperating with the federal,

         22  state and with the City, to hold this oversight

         23  hearing, this joint oversight hearing, so at least,

         24  because this City being the capital, as is referred

         25  to, not only the capital itself, but also the media
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          2  capital, that we continue to remind all of us of

          3  what is possible that could happen in the City of

          4  New York, and we will not get blamed, like we were

          5  blamed for the failure to be caught offguard with

          6  the West Nile, I think this is the beginning of

          7  attempting to address and perhaps set the record

          8  straight and inform the general public on the proper

          9  procedures and what we are doing.

         10                 Having said that, let me before I

         11  call the State, let me call again and yield to my

         12  colleague, Council Member Madeline Provenzano, the

         13  Chair of the Subcommittee on Federal Affairs, for

         14  the Council.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman. I thank you for this joint hearing.

         17  This is actually the first meeting of Federal

         18  Affairs, and I think it was a Committee that laid

         19  dormant for awhile and I really think it is an

         20  important committee and I see the position of this

         21  Committee as bringing certain serious matters that

         22  are on a federal level to our constituents on a

         23  local level. I think sometimes we feel that, well,

         24  what is going on in Washington is too far removed

         25  from what is going on here in our City, and I think
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          2  it is our responsibility to make that connection.

          3                 So, that is one of the things that I

          4  would like to do in this Committee, and I think this

          5  particular issue that was brought to us by our

          6  colleague Steve Fiala, is a perfect example of the

          7  kind of thing that both my Committee and Chairman

          8  Robles would be discussing, because I think that

          9  since the federal government has most of the

         10  responsibility for regulating feed and inspecting

         11  and overseeing cattle, that the onus of

         12  responsibility in this case really falls upon the

         13  federal government.

         14                 So, as my colleague, Council Member

         15  Robles, said, at the end of this meeting hopefully

         16  we will come up with some recommendations that we

         17  would like to make to the federal government, to the

         18  state and, of course, to our own local people. So, I

         19  thank all of you that are here today.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Since my

         21  colleague did mention, let me just turn to the

         22  sponsor of this resolution, and let me also say that

         23  the resolution calls for the appropriate committee

         24  of the Council, which in this case is the Health

         25  Committee, to hold an oversight hearing, which we
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          2  are doing today, we will also move to vote to file

          3  the resolution, since today is that hearing.

          4                 But the person who actually came to

          5  me originally and was discussing this issue with me,

          6  and I want to personally thank you, because

          7  sometimes in the hustle bustle of the Council we

          8  tend to overlook certain things, but I want to

          9  personally thank him because I think that it just

         10  shows the partnership we have in the Council,

         11  regardless of what side of the aisle you happen to

         12  be from, so let me call the sponsor of this

         13  resolution, Council Member Steve Fiala, who is from

         14  the County of Richmond, the Borough of Staten

         15  Island.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Well, thank

         17  you, Mr. Chairman, and Madam Chair. I appreciate the

         18  collaborative effort of the Health Committee and the

         19  Subcommittee on Federal Affairs, I think this joint

         20  hearing sends a clear message that we take this

         21  issue seriously.

         22                 I will be very brief, by way of

         23  background. This issue was brought to my attention

         24  last November following the death of a 78-year-old

         25  man in Staten Island, as reported in the Staten
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          2  Island Advance, and anecdotal evidence suggested

          3  that the cause of death may have been, I stress may

          4  have been, and it was believed by some to have been

          5  a mad cow.

          6                 I later learned upon inspection, if

          7  that was the case it would be CJD, Creutzfeldt-Jakob

          8  Disease, the human variant of mad cow. There is no

          9  way to confirm that absent an autopsy. So, we were

         10  unable to make a confirmation on that case.

         11                 What ensued was a series of

         12  discussions with health professionals, many leading

         13  medical professionals, scientific research analyst,

         14  both here in New York and elsewhere, where I learned

         15  a great deal about this subject and took an even

         16  greater interest.

         17                 The purpose of the resolution was

         18  simple. We asked for the hearing so that we could

         19  (a) bring together these experts to dispel false

         20  notions that may exist out there regarding this very

         21  serious health issue which has global significance.

         22  I stress global because a few months ago it was the

         23  United Nations and the World Health Organization

         24  which issued the statement that it was in their view

         25  that nations around the world were somewhat lax in
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          2  how they were approaching this whole issue and that

          3  they should each look inward and collectively,

          4  particularly the European economic community,

          5  collectively establish protocols to protect citizens

          6  of those nations in the future. I believe about 90

          7  people in Great Britain have died from mad cow, so

          8  clearly there is sufficient evidence to suggest that

          9  this is no longer a laughing matter. I know that

         10  when I first heard about it several years back I

         11  laughed it off, a mad cow, you tend to think of it

         12  as a cow that has gone mad. Little do you know that

         13  it could be the beginning of a debilitating disease

         14  that will result in your death. So, we want to

         15  dispel false notions that are out there. But more

         16  important, we want to be able to establish with the

         17  medical and health professionals here today

         18  protocols which should be in place, because we can

         19  no longer take comfort in knowing that, well, this

         20  was a European issue. The European community thought

         21  this was a Great Britain issue and laughed at Great

         22  Britain. Now Great Britain is looking at the other

         23  European communities and realizing that they might

         24  have the last laugh because they have gone through

         25  this hell and now other nations throughout the
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          2  European community are suffering a similar

          3  consequence.

          4                 We want to establish some safeguards

          5  and some protocols. Chairwoman Provenzano and

          6  yourself were accurate, this is in large measure a

          7  federal issue. But as your diagram will show later

          8  on, the food chain works its way down to our

          9  restaurants and our hospitals and our schools where

         10  children are eating beef products, and other

         11  meat-based products, so we do have a role to play.

         12  It might be a role at the outer end or a smaller

         13  role than the other levels of government, but

         14  nonetheless, we inherit the problem if there is

         15  deficiencies up the line through the federal

         16  government.

         17                 So, I am very grateful for your

         18  leadership on this issue and your responsiveness

         19  from day one, and I want to commend you, Chairwoman

         20  Provenzano, your respective counsels, those that

         21  have participated from the Investigations and

         22  Oversight Unit, you have done a great job in pulling

         23  this together, and we have some wonderful witnesses

         24  who can now provide a scientific analysis. And I

         25  hope when we all leave today, we will leave with a
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          2  better understanding of mad cow and its human

          3  variant, and more importantly with a commitment to

          4  establish protocols in New York City to safeguard

          5  our citizens and our school children and our seniors

          6  from suffering the consequences that some of the

          7  Europeans have suffered.

          8                 Thank you, sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         10  Council Member.

         11                 Let me also acknowledge the presence

         12  of members of the Committee, Council Member Morty

         13  Povman from Queens, and Council Member Eva Moskowitz

         14  from Manhattan.

         15                 Let me also, before I again call the

         16  first witness, say that we have been faxed a written

         17  statement which I urge you to make sure Commissioner

         18  Neal Cohen and the state representative gets a copy

         19  before they leave, by Dr. Craig Reed, who is the

         20  Administrator of Animal and Plant Health Inspection

         21  Services, United States Department of Agriculture,

         22  which I will submit for the record, and what we will

         23  do perhaps is, rather than reading the seven pages,

         24  it is now public record, I will submit it for the

         25  record and we will each get one, and just make sure
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          2  that both Commissioner Neal Cohen and Dr. Huntley

          3  also gets it.

          4                 I see no other, at least what I call

          5  house chores, let me then call upon Dr. John

          6  Huntley, the Chief Veterinarian of the Division of

          7  Animal Industry of the New York State Department of

          8  Agriculture and Markets.

          9                 Would you come to the table? Let me

         10  just say, would you just again identify yourself for

         11  the record, particularly into the mike, because

         12  everything is now technology so everything is taped,

         13  and we don't have a stenographer, so we need you to

         14  again speak into the mike.

         15                 DR. HUNTLEY: Well, thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman, Co-Chairman, and all Council Members here.

         17  I do take this issue very seriously. We have been

         18  watching this since 1986 when mad cow disease first

         19  came onto the screen as far as a new clinical end at

         20  cattle.

         21                 My name is John Huntley, by the way.

         22  I am the Director of the Division of Animal Industry

         23  within the Department of Agriculture and Markets. My

         24  job there is essentially the State Veterinarian, and

         25  we have three main functions: One is the control of
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          2  animal diseases that affect production animals,

          3  food-producing animals; the second one is the

          4  control of zoonotic disease in the animal

          5  populations, and those are the diseases transmitted

          6  from animals to humans; and the third one is to

          7  prevent the amplification of environmental

          8  pathogens, and then dissemination into the

          9  environment.

         10                 Again, I am pleased to represent the

         11  Department of Agriculture and Markets today, and

         12  they have asked me to read a statement that they

         13  have approved concerning this issue.

         14                 We have done a lot I think you will

         15  find to mitigate some of the risk factors that are

         16  present with mad cow disease, in spite of the fact

         17  that there is no indication currently that we do

         18  indeed have mad cow disease here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That statement,

         20  is that the only copy you have, or did you give that

         21  to the Sergeant-At-Arms?

         22                 DR. HUNTLEY: I gave a whole stack.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         24                 DR. HUNTLEY: Bovine spongiform

         25  encephalopathy, or mad cow disease, is a chronic
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          2  degenerative disease affecting the central nervous

          3  system of cattle. The nature of the transmissible

          4  agent currently is unknown. The most accepted theory

          5  is that the agent is a modified form of a normal

          6  cell surface component known as prion protein. One

          7  of the key characteristics of this particular agent

          8  that are unique I think to infectious agents are

          9  that it, number one, it does not evoke any

         10  detectable immune response in the animal or in the

         11  human, and number two, it is extremely resistant to

         12  things that normally take care of infectious agents,

         13  like sterilization, heat and other processes.

         14                 It's important to note that in

         15  cattle, the naturally occurring BSE, the agent is

         16  only found in brain tissue, spinal cord and in the

         17  retina.  The distal ileum, bone marrow, dorsal root

         18  ganglion and trigeminal ganglion have been

         19  experimentally shown to be able to pass the disease.

         20                 The transmission occurs, data in

         21  England suggests that in Great Britain that this is

         22  a common source outbreak, an extended common source

         23  outbreak, involving animal feed containing

         24  contaminated meat and bone meal as a protein source.

         25  And why that is important is that this epidemic is
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          2  not passing laterally, it is not continuing to --

          3  once you remove the source, which is the

          4  contaminated meat material, the epidemic seems to be

          5  subsiding.

          6                 Limited research suggests that

          7  maternal or vertical transmission may occur at a

          8  very low level. This low level most likely would not

          9  perpetuate the epidemic under British farming

         10  conditions.

         11                 The disease, again, is relatively new

         12  in terms of the infectious diseases as we know them.

         13  It was first diagnosed in 1986, and as of January of

         14  this year, 178,000 cases of BSE were confirmed in

         15  the United Kingdom in more than 35,000 herds.

         16                 Public health issues here are that

         17  March 20th, 1996, the United Kingdom's Spongiform

         18  Encephalopathy Advisory Committee announced the

         19  identification of 10 cases of new variant

         20  Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease in people. These ten cases

         21  have characteristic clinical and pathologic

         22  phenotype which differed from other routinely

         23  diagnosed cases of classic sporadic CJD. This cases

         24  are characterized by a younger age at onset of

         25  symptoms, have behavior change symptoms, longer

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  duration of illness and non-diagnostic or normal EEG

          3  tracing, and, under microscopic examination,

          4  different lesions in brain tissues.

          5                 SEAC concluded that, although there

          6  was no direct scientific evidence of a link between

          7  BSE and variant CJD, the most likely explanation was

          8  that the cases were linked to exposure to BSE before

          9  the introduction of the specified bovine offal ban.

         10  That is the high-risk materials that I spoke about

         11  before. They precluded in 1989 high-risk material

         12  like brain stem, spinal cord and so forth, from the

         13  human food chain at that time.

         14                 The specified bovine offal excluded

         15  from human consumption, brain, spinal cord and other

         16  organs with potential BSE infectivity.

         17                 As of March 5th, 2001, 95 cases of

         18  variant CJD have been identified in the United

         19  Kingdom, one in Ireland and two in France. It is

         20  important to clarify the difference between classic

         21  CJD and variant CJD. Classic CJD occurs each year at

         22  the rate of one to two cases per one million people

         23  throughout the world, including the United States

         24  and other countries, where BSE has never occurred,

         25  and among vegetarians and meat-eaters alike. Classic
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          2  CJD occurs sporadically through iatrogenic

          3  transmissions or genetically. Those are the three

          4  ways that CJD occurs.

          5                 According to the U.S. Centers for

          6  Disease Control and Prevention, no cases of variant

          7  CJD have been identified in the United States to

          8  date.

          9                 One of our primary goals here is to

         10  exclude the infected material from coming into the

         11  United States and having a similar situation occur

         12  in the United States. Therefore, products derived

         13  from ruminants, such as fetal bovine serum, which

         14  they use for a wide variety of biologic, vaccines

         15  and so forth, bonemeal, meat-and-bone meal,

         16  bloodmeal, offal, which are the remnants of

         17  processing of an animal, glands, are also prohibited

         18  from entry except under special conditions or under

         19  USDA permit.

         20                 As of December 7th, 2000, the U.S.

         21  Department of Agriculture has prohibited all imports

         22  of rendered animal protein products regardless of

         23  species from Europe. This decision followed the

         24  recent determination by the European Union that feed

         25  of non-ruminant origin was potentially
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          2  cross-contaminated with the bovine spongiform

          3  encephalopathy.

          4                 Their failure to be able to separate

          5  the risk materials there led to that particular

          6  action.

          7                 The other way to bring this disease

          8  into this country is to bring in infected animals.

          9  The second arm that we also participate in is we try

         10  to prohibit the importation of animals from

         11  countries where BSE may have occurred.

         12                 New York State veterinarians and USDA

         13  veterinarians have monitored or continued to monitor

         14  the cattle imported from Great Britain, Belgium and

         15  other European countries that arrived prior to the

         16  import ban. As of December 31st, 2000, of the 496

         17  cattle imported from Great Britain and Ireland, that

         18  is nationally, only four animals remained. These

         19  animals are quarantined and observed regularly. By

         20  the way, they are precluded from entering the human

         21  food chain. None are located in New York State.

         22                 To date, no evidence of BSE or any

         23  TSE in cattle has been detected. The 25 European

         24  cattle imported in 1996 to '97 that are still alive

         25  are currently under quarantine. USDA is attempting
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          2  to buy these animals for research. Again, none of

          3  the animals are located in New York.

          4                 So, what are we doing in terms of the

          5  Department of Agriculture in concert with USDA? New

          6  York State Veterinarians again provide the

          7  information and training to the State's veterinary

          8  practitioners on an annual basis, veterinary

          9  laboratory diagnosticians, also at an annual basis,

         10  industry and producers.  This training is focused on

         11  the early recognition of potential BSE cases and on

         12  appropriate sample collection to verify a case.

         13                 What we do is we notify our

         14  practitioners that if they suspect through the

         15  exhibition of some neurologic signs that a case may

         16  be either rabies or mad cow disease, we ask for

         17  appropriate sample submission.

         18                 The New York State Cattle Health

         19  Assurance program is a preventive approach that

         20  addresses some of these issues. It is co-named

         21  NYSCHAP, but it is a systematic approach designed to

         22  mitigate animal health, public health and

         23  environmental risk factors on the farm.

         24                 Based on an individual farm risk

         25  assessment, process barriers are established to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  prevent the introduction, on-farm amplification, and

          3  export of pathogens and other agents from the farm,

          4  its animals or food products. This fits right in to

          5  BSE control.

          6                 Nearly 450 farms producing over 15

          7  percent of the state's milk are currently enrolled,

          8  and, again, this is a voluntary program, we are

          9  actually up to nearly 550 now.

         10                 We have dealt with exclusion, that's

         11  our primary way of mitigating this human health

         12  risk. The next thing we want to do is be able to

         13  detect it if it does happen to be introduced.

         14                 This interagency surveillance program

         15  for BSE in the United States facilitates detection,

         16  sample collection and confirmation of potential BSE

         17  cases. BSE is a reportable disease by accredited

         18  veterinarians. It is the counterpart really to the

         19  human reportable disease situation where if a

         20  reportable disease is suspected by any accredited

         21  veterinary practitioner, they are required to report

         22  it to my office and proper work-up ensues.

         23                 The surveillance samples include

         24  field cattle exhibiting clinical signs of neurologic

         25  disease, cattle condemned at slaughter for
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          2  neurologic reasons, rabies-negative cattle submitted

          3  to public health laboratories, neurologic cases

          4  submitted to veterinary diagnostic laboratories and

          5  teaching hospitals, and sampling of cattle that are

          6  non-ambulatory, so-called downer cattle or fallen

          7  stock.

          8                 You will hear about European systems

          9  that test tens of thousands of animals in order to

         10  determine whether they are infected with mad cow

         11  disease or not.

         12                 As far as the surveillance mode goes,

         13  we have a greater likelihood of detecting the

         14  introduction and the amplification of BSE in this

         15  country, by keying our surveillance effort to these

         16  high-risk animals, as opposed to just random

         17  sampling clinically healthy cattle.

         18                 Suspect brains from cattle meeting

         19  the case criteria are evaluated using

         20  immunohistochemistry to test for the presence of an

         21  abnormal prion protein.

         22                 As of December 31st, 2000, nearly

         23  12,000 brains in the United States and Puerto Rico

         24  have been examined with no evidence of BSE. And,

         25  again, these are those clinically abnormal animals.
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          2                 US surveillance rates are more than

          3  five times the international established

          4  surveillance rate.

          5                 The equivalent to the World Health

          6  Organization for animals is OIE, it stands for

          7  Organizational International Epizootic, it is

          8  French, I think. But anyway, they have established

          9  what our surveillance goal should be, and, again, we

         10  are five times over what that should be in the US.

         11                 Okay, how do we prevent it from

         12  amplifying it, if it is introduced in this country?

         13                 The way that it got into the cattle

         14  in Europe was that they were fed other animals, in a

         15  sense an enforced cannibalism, by feeding them --

         16  they are eating their own, essentially. So, animal

         17  feed, the Food and Drug Administration regulation

         18  prohibits the use of most mammalian protein in the

         19  manufacture of animal feeds given to ruminants,

         20  those are cattle, sheep, goats.

         21                 In addition, the final regulation

         22  also requires process and control systems to ensure

         23  that ruminant feed does not contain prohibited

         24  mammalian tissue.

         25                 The Department of Agriculture and
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          2  Markets has conducted feed mill compliance visits

          3  under each contract with FDA.

          4                 The human food chain: BSE has not

          5  been shown to exist in the United States. If,

          6  however, a low level TSE existed in US cattle, the

          7  FDA ruminant feed ban is intended to prevent any

          8  amplification of the agent within the cattle

          9  population. It is thought that a similar

         10  amplification of this agent within the United

         11  Kingdom cattle population resulted in a human

         12  exposure that was magnified in terms of dose and

         13  frequency. It is also thought that this exposure was

         14  sufficient to produce clinical disease in

         15  susceptible individuals.

         16                 General terms for discussion: The BSE

         17  epidemic in UK appears to be responding to the

         18  control measures that have been established and

         19  enforced. Those of you who have a copy of my talk,

         20  you can see really a classical epidemic curve. You

         21  can see that the new cases are responding to the

         22  outbreak, and the control measures are effective.

         23                 I think we can learn a lot from this

         24  and we copy UK procedures here, in spite of the fact

         25  that we don't have it, we should be able to prevent
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          2  it from amplifying within the cattle population.

          3                 The practice of feeding those

          4  infected animal proteins to susceptible young calves

          5  is believed to have contributed significantly to the

          6  outbreak.

          7                 Calves have an open gut, they don't

          8  absorb antibodies. Like humans get a lot of

          9  antibodies transplacentally, in cows almost all of

         10  their immunity occurs through the ingestion of

         11  colostrum at birth. Their gut is open in terms of

         12  they allow large proteins to pass. They think that

         13  this ability of cattle to absorb these large

         14  proteins may have something to do with the

         15  susceptibility of these young animals to the

         16  disease.

         17                 The key point, however, is that

         18  current practices in England appear to be

         19  eliminating the epizootic in cattle. BSE has not

         20  been detected in US cattle population, in spite of

         21  the examination of nearly 12,000 brains.

         22                 Again, animal import control:

         23  Prevention of the importation of ruminants that are

         24  infected or that have consumed BSE specified risk

         25  material is a key element of public health and
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          2  animal health systems. The US ban on such animals

          3  addresses this issue.

          4                 Control of high-risk animal origin

          5  products: Animal origin products, animal feeds and

          6  human foodstuffs from infected countries could

          7  introduce this agent to domestic animal populations.

          8  The USDA ban addresses this practice. In addition,

          9  compliance activities of the plant, protection and

         10  quarantine and veterinary services, USDA, has been

         11  enhanced recently to meet this challenge.

         12                 Animal Feed Preventive Measures: FDA

         13  restrictions on mammalian proteins eligible for use

         14  as protein supplements in animal feeds are the

         15  correct response based on the experience in Europe.

         16                 And this is a critical one, if you

         17  have been following, a lot of people confuse mad cow

         18  disease with foot and mouth disease that is also

         19  occurring in England, and I hope nobody does that in

         20  this room, but one of the key things that has been

         21  blamed or cited as one of the major factors for the

         22  outbreak of mad cow disease and the outbreak of foot

         23  and mouth disease in England is the failure for

         24  public commitment to maintain a veterinary

         25  diagnostic infrastructure and surveillance.
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          2                 This veterinary diagnostic laboratory

          3  system and associated field surveillance

          4  infrastructure is the first line of defense for the

          5  detection of many of the diseases of public and

          6  animal health significance.

          7                 We play a key role animal health side

          8  does in many public health issues. Support for the

          9  system in terms of operating resources, personnel

         10  and expertise is required to maintain the

         11  surveillance and diagnostic requirements of an

         12  appropriate BSE surveillance system.

         13                 Thank you, and I am subject to any of

         14  your questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Let me

         16  also say that we have been joined, who may be a

         17  member of the Public Safety Committee, too, Council

         18  Member Espada from the Bronx.

         19                 Let me make sure I understand what I

         20  just heard. So, while the federal government

         21  oversees particularly coming here, it is really the

         22  state function inspecting that you go out throughout

         23  the state in terms of checking on meat product like

         24  cows and what have you, correct?

         25                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct.
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          2                 For example, the FDA contracts, they

          3  do their job by letting contracts to the State

          4  Department of Agriculture who inspects the feed

          5  mills.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. Let me make

          7  sure and follow through on my questioning, because,

          8  you get briefed before these hearings and I still

          9  have to learn what was said to me, because I am not

         10  an expert in this.

         11                 It is the federal government who

         12  actually has a list of I guess places where

         13  wholesalers, or approved places where meat can be

         14  sold from; is that fair to say?

         15                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes, in conjunction with

         16  the State.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The federal

         18  government then passes on to the state this list

         19  which says these are the places that we approve

         20  where they can actually sell meat from to local

         21  wholesalers; is that how it works?

         22                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct. Retail

         23  meat, though, is Ag and Markets.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But, again, this

         25  list that I hear about comes from the federal
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          2  government to the states?

          3                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And, so, you

          5  receive some kind of list from the federal

          6  government within the State of New York of certain

          7  locations that people can go to, or at least those

          8  who would purchase meat from?

          9                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         11                 How often is that list given to your

         12  or updated?

         13                 DR. HUNTLEY: I am afraid I can't

         14  answer that because that is not my division. It is

         15  the State Division of Food Inspection that does

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, would you

         18  be so kind, again, I just want to trace because here

         19  is what I am going to get to when Commissioner Neal

         20  Cohen comes into the picture, and the City's role,

         21  from the way I understand it right now really the

         22  federal government is responsible to approve the

         23  kind of meats that come into this country?

         24                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And when farmers
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          2  that are within the country, there are certain

          3  protocols that they have to also maintain, i.e., the

          4  federal government, just like we impose upon foreign

          5  imports, correct?

          6                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And then

          8  ultimately it is the State government through its

          9  state agency who is really the monitor to oversee to

         10  make sure that whatever compliances must be besides

         11  the state's own mandates, but the federal mandates;

         12  is that fair to say?

         13                 DR. HUNTLEY: In terms of retail,

         14  that's correct. In terms of slaughter, that is a

         15  federal responsibility.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. But even

         17  federal, when the meat gets to the State of New York

         18  and distributed so that locally in the City of New

         19  York whoever purchases, there is a certain protocol

         20  that must be met; is that correct?

         21                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. How often

         23  does the State agency inspect for these compliances,

         24  i.e., for example, farmers within our own borders,

         25  within our own state?
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          2                 DR. HUNTLEY: Inspect for compliance

          3  with the feed ban, for example?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Inspection of a

          5  whole host of things, for example. They are raising

          6  cattle which eventually will be sold in the market;

          7  is that fair to say?

          8                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, cattle could

         10  also not be the meat itself but the product, for

         11  example, milk?

         12                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. And, again,

         14  I am not an expert, but let's say we won't get sick

         15  from the milk, it is only when it comes to the meat,

         16  correct?

         17                 DR. HUNTLEY: Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: How often do you

         19  do that, in terms of the state, i.e., the farmers

         20  within the State of New York?

         21                 DR. HUNTLEY: In terms of inspection

         22  for compliance with the feed ban, it's on an annual

         23  basis generally.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And on an annual

         25  basis, do you have a ballpark figure of the number
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          2  of inspections you have done?

          3                 DR. HUNTLEY: It is very small.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It is small.

          5                 DR. HUNTLEY: It is about, I hesitate

          6  to say, but it is only about 25.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: 25 inspections?

          8                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, again, I

         10  want to make sure you understand me. But in the

         11  State of New York, in terms of farmers, what is the

         12  total number that the state knows that exists,

         13  farmers who are now raising cattle?

         14                 DR. HUNTLEY: Approximately 7,500

         15  herds.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Seventy-five

         17  hundred herds, and of that only 25 inspections?

         18                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct. And

         19  those are directed by contract with FDA.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And, again, I

         21  apologize because I am not -- this is not my forte'

         22  so I am just trying to --

         23                 DR. HUNTLEY: I was going to say, the

         24  issue, though, is the protection of the feed, and

         25  those are done 100 percent compliance. And the feed
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          2  mills are examined to make sure the prohibited

          3  material doesn't get to the farm.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

          5                 DR. HUNTLEY: So that is where our

          6  compliance efforts are.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And how often do

          8  you do that?

          9                 DR. HUNTLEY: Annually.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, but you

         11  just said on an annual basis you only do 25.

         12                 DR. HUNTLEY: No, that was for on-farm

         13  inspections.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I see.

         15                 DR. HUNTLEY: At the feed mills it is

         16  100 percent. There are 141 feed mills in the state.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. And, so,

         18  once a year you go out to those 140 plus to make

         19  sure that they are in compliance with whatever is

         20  mandated?

         21                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And on an annual

         23  basis, are there any violations?

         24                 DR. HUNTLEY: Four were found in

         25  non-compliance, mostly a labeling violation in this
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          2  last round.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          4                 The other area I would like to

          5  discuss, and then I will call upon my co-chair of

          6  the Subcommittee, the chair of the Subcommittee,

          7  again, it is my understanding that the inspectors

          8  from your division of Food and Safety Inspections

          9  are responsible, among other duties for the

         10  inspection of meat sold at retail establishments; is

         11  that correct?

         12                 DR. HUNTLEY: That is correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, and, so,

         14  these retail establishments, this list that I am

         15  referring to from the federal government, is that is

         16  what is referred to where retailers can sell the

         17  meat from or can purchase the meat from?

         18                 DR. HUNTLEY: I am afraid I don't

         19  know.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, how do your

         21  inspectors go out and inspect in the case of the

         22  retail, since you are responsible, I am saying your

         23  agency, that what is mandated of them is being

         24  carried out; how does that work?

         25                 DR. HUNTLEY: All of the retail food
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          2  establishments are registered with my Department,

          3  and our Division of Food Safety Inspection goes out

          4  and inspects those on a periodic basis.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. And, now,

          6  those inspectors that go out, how are they able to

          7  determine whether meat is contaminated with mad cow

          8  disease during inspection?

          9                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's impossible. They

         10  can't do that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: They can't.

         12                 So then how do we check and balance,

         13  check to protect the health of the people of New

         14  York State?

         15                 DR. HUNTLEY: What you do is you

         16  prohibit the introduction and amplification of this

         17  agent within the cattle population, and that is why

         18  we deal at the feed mill level. That's number one.

         19                 Number two, we try to determine when

         20  it comes in by taking a look at those high risk

         21  cattle. Those animals that are looking like they may

         22  have mad cow disease or some other neurologic

         23  illness, we try to determine if it in fact does come

         24  in here, and so far we have not found it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, walk me
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          2  through, for example, now you go, clearly I went

          3  from the federal to the state, now since I see my

          4  dear friend Neal Cohen, now the Commissioner of

          5  Health for the City, we have inspectors that go out,

          6  too, they go out to our restaurants.

          7                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, what I need

          9  to know is the protocol between the State and the

         10  City so that when their inspectors go out, what is

         11  the protocol that they are supposed to be aware of

         12  in order to, again, if they go to a restaurant and

         13  see the meat there, that this meat is coming from

         14  the approved wholesale, which is approved by the

         15  federal government, and I think that is what I heard

         16  here; is that fair to say?

         17                 DR. HUNTLEY: There is in fact a list

         18  of approved sources, and those sources are the ones

         19  that meet --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: How do they get

         21  that, from where? From you or from the federal

         22  government?

         23                 DR. HUNTLEY: USDA, I believe.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you don't

         25  know how often that list is updated? Or at least you
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          2  just said that before, correct?

          3                 DR. HUNTLEY: No, I don't know.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And, so, if our

          5  inspectors go out, they will have this list with

          6  them so they know what they are looking for?

          7                 DR. HUNTLEY: Well, they know who the

          8  approved sources are.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         10                 I have other questions, but, again,

         11  in fairness to my colleagues, let me first turn to

         12  the Chair of the Subcommittee, Council Member

         13  Provenzano, for any questions, and then I will yield

         14  to not only Council Member Fiala, but any member of

         15  the Committee.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay,

         17  thank you, now that I am totally confused.

         18                 You did say that the main whatever is

         19  protection of feed, so does that mean that that

         20  would be the source from which the disease is

         21  transmitted from cow to cow?

         22                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes, it is from cows

         23  eating cows.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. So,

         25  a cow can't get it just because another cow has it
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          2  and they are doing what cows do?

          3                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: It has to

          5  be through the feed.

          6                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          8                 And we have had no instance of mad

          9  cow disease in the United States that has been

         10  confirmed?

         11                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: On page

         13  one, specified risk material, you say that in cattle

         14  naturally infected with BSE, that the agent has been

         15  found only in brain tissue, spinal cord and the

         16  retina?

         17                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, there

         19  is now way then that it gets into the blood stream

         20  or travels throughout the body or it just kind of

         21  stays contained in those parts of the body?

         22                 DR. HUNTLEY: In a natural situation

         23  that is true. Experimentally the list of tissues is

         24  expanding, and one of the recent experimental

         25  studies does demonstrate the transmission of mad cow
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          2  disease from blood material to a sheep in an

          3  experimental situation.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, that

          5  was kind of my next thing, because wasn't there some

          6  place where many sheep were -- but that was in the

          7  United States, wasn't it, where they destroyed many

          8  sheep?

          9                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes. Those sheep were

         10  imported from Belgium, which is a country that may

         11  have allowed the consumption of this contaminated

         12  material. That is the reason they were in quarantine

         13  up in Vermont. They were sent to slaughter because

         14  they showed a change in the brain that may have been

         15  mad cow disease.

         16                 The problem with sheep is they also

         17  have a transmissible spongiform encephalopathy that

         18  has been present in sheep for over 250 years that

         19  they can't distinguish between the two right now, so

         20  to air on the safe side they slaughtered those two

         21  entire flocks of sheep to make sure it didn't get

         22  into the food chains and also perpetuate itself

         23  within the US.

         24                 They injected that material into

         25  susceptible mice and it will take almost two years
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          2  before they know whether it is mad cow disease or

          3  scrapie.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, since

          5  the source of getting the disease is feed, not the

          6  animal, explain to me how it gets to the feed? Is it

          7  because we use the animals to make the feed?

          8                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes, Ma'am.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And then

         10  we feed the feed to other animals?

         11                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes, that's correct.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         13                 DR. HUNTLEY: It is a pretty good

         14  source of animal protein, and rather than throw that

         15  animal protein out, they used to reformulate it into

         16  various livestock feeds.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Now, there

         18  were certain health products that use bonemeal, that

         19  even use some fetal products, you know, that you can

         20  buy at health food stores or whatever, are those

         21  kinds of things susceptible to this disease somehow?

         22                 DR. HUNTLEY: I believe that some of

         23  them are, but I would rather have you talk to a

         24  physician than me.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. And
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          2  I guess what that was leading to, and maybe that

          3  would have to be the same person I would have to

          4  ask, the regulations that have been imposed, are

          5  they on these imports that would come, because I

          6  think a lot of this stuff is probably, you know,

          7  from other countries.

          8                 DR. HUNTLEY: As I understand it,

          9  anything that has been demonstrated to be able to

         10  transmit this disease, either experimentally or

         11  naturally, has been banned, as far as importation

         12  goes.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: By the

         14  federal government, I guess?

         15                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: What

         17  symptoms would cattle show, if you were just looking

         18  at them? Would there be symptoms?

         19                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes. First of all, it is

         20  a fairly long incubation period. You are looking at

         21  two and a half to eight years for a cow, and that is

         22  a long time in the life of a cow. And they will

         23  generally show problems, the part of the brain that

         24  is affected most is the part that controls the

         25  equilibrium, so they show a lot of changes involving
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          2  stumbling. They will shake. They will show abnormal

          3  postural movement. If there is a step, they won't

          4  know enough to step up onto the step, and they can

          5  have some behavioral changes where they may become

          6  aggressive. That's why it looks like rabies, because

          7  it really shows similar neurologic signs.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Now, you

          9  say the incubation period could be two and a half to

         10  eight years, what about in humans, what is the

         11  incubation? I mean, could a human like kind of have

         12  this for awhile?

         13                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes, I don't know what

         14  the incubation period is in the human. Certain

         15  people are more susceptible to showing signs than

         16  others, based on their genetic make-up, and they may

         17  show it sooner, and there may be another subset of

         18  people that may show it later, so, I don't know. I

         19  don't know what the answer to that is.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. And

         21  we have determined that it is not transmitted from

         22  cow to cow?

         23                 DR. HUNTLEY: Correct.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: It has

         25  been projected that about 5,000 head of cattle will
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          2  be tested for mad cow disease this year by the

          3  federal government. Some advocates have pushed for

          4  at least doubling the number of cattle tested. Do

          5  you agree that more testing is necessary? If so,

          6  why? And another question would be how do you test?

          7                 DR. HUNTLEY: Okay, there is no

          8  anti-mortem test available, you have to take the

          9  brain material. So, it is all on dead cows. That's

         10  the first thing.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh.

         12                 DR. HUNTLEY: The second thing, again,

         13  I stand by what my colleagues in OIE have said, and

         14  that is, the surveillance system that we are using,

         15  again, we are five times over the level that they

         16  say should be sufficient to detect this disease

         17  should it occur. And, so, I don't necessarily think

         18  we ought to be doubling the number of samples.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, I

         20  think my colleague -- Steve, I am sure you have

         21  something? You are on.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,

         23  Madam Chair.

         24                 Dr. Huntley, welcome.

         25                 DR. HUNTLEY: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: And thank you

          3  for your very informed testimony.

          4                 DR. HUNTLEY: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Like the

          6  Chairwoman, I, too, am confused. This is a complex

          7  subject, a lot of overlapping issues that play, I

          8  would like to just reestablish some numbers.

          9                 How many head of cattle are there in

         10  New York State?

         11                 DR. HUNTLEY: There are 7,500 herds,

         12  and they represent probably 750,000 cattle.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: We know that

         14  the FDA, the federal government has a great deal of

         15  jurisdiction over this issue, which said that there

         16  are critical linkages between all levels of

         17  government, because we don't want the problem to

         18  escalate to the point where it becomes a Department

         19  of Health problem, a human case.

         20                 There are 140 feed mills in New York

         21  State, as you indicated, and four of them have been

         22  found to be in non-compliance for labeling

         23  requirements?

         24                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct. They

         25  were, by the way, corrected on the spot. The

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  compliance issues have been resolved.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: What type of

          4  non-compliance? What should their label be stating?

          5  Or what exactly is the label? What are they

          6  labeling?

          7                 DR. HUNTLEY: FDA regulations provide

          8  for labeling of animal protein that originates from

          9  ruminants to indicate clearly that it is ruminant

         10  origin protein and it is not to be fed to ruminant

         11  animals.

         12                 So, the fact that either they didn't

         13  keep proper records during the manufacture and

         14  distribution of this feed product, or in some cases

         15  they failed to label the product appropriately.

         16  Those were the two issues.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Now, the

         18  ruminant feed is not banned in this country?

         19                 DR. HUNTLEY: Ruminant feed from

         20  ruminant animals is to be fed only to nonruminants.

         21  So, in terms of, yes, they still manufacture animal

         22  protein made from ruminant material, but it is to be

         23  fed to other livestock that are not susceptible to

         24  mad cow.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Forgive my
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          2  ignorance, what type of livestock?

          3                 DR. HUNTLEY: Predominantly chickens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay. I have it

          5  now. So, there was a great misunderstanding on my

          6  part then, because I couldn't understand, I

          7  misinterpreted the regulation. I had been under the

          8  belief that the feed was banned.

          9                 So, that would explain -- CBS

         10  national news back in March did a special on this,

         11  and there were 700 US feed makers that had been in

         12  violation of the labeling requirements as of

         13  January. So, over a two-month period 700 US feed

         14  makers were in violation.

         15                 Additionally there were 1,200 cattle

         16  in Texas that were quarantined because they were fed

         17  this ruminant feed. So now I understand, it's not

         18  that we don't make it anymore, they are just not

         19  supposed to be feeding it to like animals I gather?

         20                 DR. HUNTLEY: That's correct. And,

         21  again, on those Texas cattle, I think a distinction

         22  has to be made that that was not infected ruminant

         23  material. That was ruminant material and it was in

         24  violation because it was illegal to do that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay.
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          2                 We talked about these critical

          3  linkages between governmental agencies and the

          4  various levels of government, what type of contact

          5  or what type of relationship does your office have

          6  with the federal government?

          7                 Are you interacting on a regular

          8  basis with federal agencies or federal counterparts

          9  so that that chain, that critical chain isn't

         10  broken, or that is a back and take, an open line of

         11  communication?

         12                 DR. HUNTLEY: Yes, we are.

         13                 Our interactions on the food safety

         14  side are mostly with our Division of Food Safety,

         15  and USDA food safety inspection service, as well as

         16  FDA.

         17                 On the animal health side, which I am

         18  on, I deal with veterinary services USDA mostly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And who do you

         20  deal with at i.e. the City of New York, I am talking

         21  about the state and municipalities?

         22                 DR. HUNTLEY: The City Health

         23  Department on issues of mutual concern, like West

         24  Nile and other issues.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Just one more
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          2  question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: While you are

          4  trying to find the question, we have also been

          5  joined by a member of the Committee, Council Member

          6  Phil Reed, from Manhattan and the Bronx.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: You said that

          8  the incubation period for a cow would be two and a

          9  half years to eight years, there have been anecdotal

         10  evidence that we have had some elk infected, I think

         11  there was a sheep in northern New York or Vermont,

         12  moving away from the cows, what steps are being

         13  taken to monitor these other animals that also wind

         14  up in the human food chain?

         15                 DR. HUNTLEY: Okay, first of all let

         16  me draw a distinction between mad cow disease and

         17  the conditions that you are referring to. Chronic

         18  wasting disease in elk is a type of transmission

         19  spongiform encephalopathy, but it is not mad cow

         20  disease, okay, so there is a distinction there. And

         21  there has not been a human health situation or

         22  syndrome associated with chronic wasting disease

         23  yet.

         24                 The same thing with scrapie in sheep.

         25  Scrapie is another transmissible spongiform
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          2  encephalopathy. It has been present, we have known

          3  about it for over 250 years and, yet, there does not

          4  appear to be a human health component to those TSEs.

          5  So, there is a difference between a TSE and a BSE.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay.

          7                 Well, again, thank you, Doctor, and

          8  thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 DR. HUNTLEY: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         11  much. We appreciate you taking the time to come

         12  before us, and, again, thank you for testifying.

         13                 DR. HUNTLEY: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say, also,

         15  before I call my dear friend and colleague, the

         16  Commissioner of the Department of Health, that we

         17  have called my colleagues, because Council Member

         18  Phil Reed has joined us also, as soon as the clerk

         19  comes up I am going to vote to file this resolution

         20  because we are doing what the resolution called for

         21  and that was the hearing, so before we lose members,

         22  because I know that the Public Safety and you might

         23  be going back and forth, as soon as the clerk comes

         24  in we will have a roll call just to file the

         25  resolution.
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          2                 Our next person is the Commissioner

          3  of the City Department of Health, Commissioner Dr.

          4  Neal Cohen.

          5                 Neal, it is always good to see you.

          6  And would you please identify yourself for the

          7  record and also those that are with you, if you have

          8  a prepared testimony, I am assuming you gave it to

          9  the Sergeant-At-Arms, yes?

         10                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. So,

         12  Commissioner, any time you want to start, sir?

         13                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Okay, thank you.

         14                 I appreciate this opportunity to

         15  testify before the joint meeting of the Health

         16  Committee and the Federal oversight subcommunity,

         17  about a communicable disease --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Wait a second.

         19  Can you push your mike? I am having a hard time

         20  hearing you.

         21                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: About a

         22  communicable disease that has been the focus of

         23  widening attention.

         24                 And what I would like to do, because

         25  I didn't know that we would have Dr. Huntley here,
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          2  is I am going to pass over some of the remarks I had

          3  prepared that are more concerned with cattle than

          4  with people and try to prioritize my reading of my

          5  testimony to those areas that bear on health impact

          6  to human beings.

          7                 The disease, new variant

          8  Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease, or new variant CJD, is

          9  often referred to as mad cow disease, while the new

         10  variant CJD is seen in humans, mad cow disease,

         11  shorthand for bovine spongiform encephalopathy, is

         12  seen in cattle, the two diseases, new variant CJD

         13  and bovine spongiform encephalopathy or BSE in

         14  cattle, are thought to be closely related, if not

         15  identical. And, again, I want to emphasize that in

         16  the United States there are no reported cases of

         17  variant CJD in humans and no reported cases of BSE

         18  in cattle.

         19                 The infective agent that causes these

         20  related diseases, new variant CJD and BSE, and

         21  several other human and animal diseases, is entirely

         22  different from the viruses, bacteria and parasites

         23  that cause most communicable diseases from the

         24  common cold, to measles to AIDS to strep throat to

         25  Lyme disease to syphilis, to TB to malaria, to name
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          2  just a few. New variant CJD and BSE are believed

          3  instead to be caused by prions. Prions are proteins;

          4  proteins are normal constituents of all living

          5  things, but prions are misshapen. Prions damage

          6  tissue and when prions come in contact with certain

          7  other proteins, they induce those proteins to become

          8  misshapen prions also.

          9                 Because prions do not behave anything

         10  like viruses, bacteria or parasites, prion diseases

         11  are not transmitted as are other diseases, nor do

         12  they follow similar courses. Hence, prion diseases

         13  are monitored, investigated and prevented

         14  differently from other communicable diseases.

         15                 The group of diseases thought to be

         16  caused by prions is now called the subacute

         17  spongiform encephalopathies, or SSEs. Subacute means

         18  the course of the disease is generally between

         19  acute, which means short and sharp in its course,

         20  and chronic, which means a slowly progressing and

         21  long-continuing course.  Spongiform means that,

         22  under the microscope, certain cells in the brain or

         23  nervous system take on a sponge-like appearance in

         24  the course of the disease and encephalopathy refers

         25  to a disease of the brain. In this set of
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          2  degenerative diseases, the SSEs, there is no immune

          3  system response and no inflammation or swelling as

          4  is typically seen in viral, bacterial an parasitic

          5  diseases. These differences distinguish the subacute

          6  spongiform encephalopathies from various forms of

          7  encephalitis or brain swelling typically caused by

          8  viral or bacterial infection.

          9                 In humans, these SSEs can cause

         10  progressive dementia. Therefore, the SSEs must be

         11  distinguished from Alzheimer's disease, and from

         12  other forms of dementia. Diagnosis is based upon

         13  clinical signs, analysis of electroencephalograms

         14  showing distinct brain electrical activity, and

         15  analysis of biopsied brain tissue or cerebrospinal

         16  fluid.

         17                 There are just a handful of

         18  prion-related diseases that are known to occur in

         19  humans, they are all fatal, and the most well-known

         20  is the classic Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease, CJD, that

         21  is the classic CJD.

         22                 And as you heard from Dr. Huntley,

         23  there are also prion-related diseases that affect

         24  animals as well, including the BSE.

         25                 I am going to skip over in my
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          2  testimony where I discuss the USDA and the FDA and

          3  their efforts to maintain, prevent the entry of this

          4  cattle disease into this country, and talk more

          5  about the human aspect.

          6                 Classic Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease is

          7  a rare fatal brain disorder, characterized by rapid

          8  progressive dementia and neuromuscular disturbances.

          9                 It is reported worldwide with an

         10  annual incidence rate of one per million, usually

         11  striking people between the ages of 60 and 75. This

         12  is the classic Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease, not the

         13  new variant form.

         14                 It is thought to exist in three

         15  forms, sporadic CJD crops up in an individual for no

         16  apparent reason. There is no known infectious source

         17  and no family history of the disease, and most cases

         18  of classic CJD are sporadic and their origin is a

         19  mystery.

         20                 Then there is the inherited, or

         21  familial CJD, which may account for 10 or 15 percent

         22  of the cases. Then you will see what are believed to

         23  be genetic mutations which are heritable, which

         24  cause the body to build these defective proteins or

         25  prions that result in these diseases.
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          2                 CJD may also be acquired through

          3  infection, that only accounts for a very small

          4  number of cases, but not contagious in the

          5  traditional sense, and spouses and family members

          6  who live with classic CJD patients appear to have no

          7  greater risk for the disease than anyone else.

          8                 The only known pathways for infection

          9  have been medical procedures that have introduced

         10  tainted human tissue directly or via medical

         11  instruments. All of these routes involve a person

         12  being directly contaminated with infected brain or

         13  nerve tissue. That could involve a corneal

         14  transplant, a graft of dura matter, which is the

         15  lining of the spinal fluid, spinal canal, and brain,

         16  the implantation of electrodes in the brain,

         17  contaminated surgical instruments, and injections of

         18  human growth hormone derived from the pituitary

         19  glands of cadavers.

         20                 No case of CJD has been reported in

         21  which a health care professional was infected by a

         22  patient. Nevertheless, it is imperative that

         23  clinicians and others whose activities put them at

         24  risk for exposure follow closely the guidelines and

         25  precautions developed for treating CJD patients and
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          2  handling their tissues, fluids and other

          3  contaminated materials.

          4                 This applies directly to

          5  neurosurgeons, to histopathology technicians and

          6  pathologists and researchers, whose risks are

          7  increased by virtue of the handling of potentially

          8  infected material.

          9                 In mid-1995, the British CJD

         10  Surveillance Unit learned of three cases of CJD in

         11  people who were aged 16, 19 and 29. So, that was

         12  highly unusual to see such young people, unexpected.

         13  And other neuropathological findings that set these

         14  patients apart from what is usually seen in classic

         15  CJD prompted an even more intensive search for a new

         16  category of CJD patients, and within six months two

         17  more CJD patients who were age 29 and 30 were

         18  identified who also fit this new pattern and did not

         19  appear to have classic CJD, and these became suspect

         20  cases of a new type of CJD possibly linked to made

         21  cow disease or BSE, bovine spongiform

         22  encephalopathy, in cattle. More suspect cases arose,

         23  laboratory work soon confirmed that the British

         24  cases were unique, there was no human genetic cause

         25  for them, new variant CJD had been identified.
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          2                 How exactly did the affected British

          3  patients acquire this new variant CJD? Laboratory

          4  analysis showed that the prions found in BSE in

          5  cattle and the prions found in new variant CJD in

          6  humans are virtually identical, so the link was made

          7  that these patients most likely got the new variant

          8  CJD from beef products.

          9                 As of this year, I think by March,

         10  there are thought to be about 93 individuals who

         11  have known new variant CJD cases in England, in the

         12  United Kingdom, one definite case in Ireland, and I

         13  believe two cases confirmed in France. None of the

         14  French patients had visited, however, their

         15  infections could have arisen either from imported

         16  British beef or beef products or from BSE affected

         17  cattle in France.

         18                 So, this new variant CJD in contrast

         19  to the classic form infects younger people, the

         20  median age of onset is now 28 years old, has a

         21  longer duration of illness of at least six months,

         22  has prominent psychiatric and sensory symptoms not

         23  seen in the classic forms, these individuals will

         24  have hallucinations, hear things, see things and

         25  have gross confusion and disorientation, evidencing
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          2  a different disease pathology in affected brain

          3  tissue.

          4                 Now, we believe that the human new

          5  variant CJD epidemic may have crested in 1999 with

          6  the onset of 20 new cases in England, but there are

          7  uncertainties about the extent of the outbreak,

          8  especially since the incubation period of new

          9  variant CJD is unknown. If the average incubation

         10  period is in the five to ten-year range, the

         11  outbreak should remain small, due to all the many

         12  measures that have been taken to eliminate animal

         13  and human exposure to BSE that was known to have

         14  begun in 1987, but if the average incubation period

         15  is longer, in the 10 to 15 year range, we could see

         16  an increase in cases in the next few years.

         17                 Let me say that while the possibility

         18  of either BSE in cattle or new variant CJD are both

         19  being identified in this nation cannot be ruled out,

         20  there is no evidence at this time that would support

         21  an expectation of a person acquiring the disease in

         22  the United States, and the CDC contends that it is

         23  extremely unlikely that BSE would be a foodborne

         24  hazard in this country, that is quoting CDC report.

         25                 Prudent health practice, nonetheless,
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          2  requires that surveillance for new variant CJD be

          3  undertaken and efforts are underway at the federal,

          4  state and local levels to enhance existing

          5  monitoring for the disease.

          6                 Let me talk more about that. The

          7  CDC's national Center for Infectious Diseases

          8  analyzes national mortality data to monitor CJD

          9  incidents in the United States. Because CJD is

         10  invariably fatal, and because the diagnosis of CJD

         11  is ascertained at or near the time of death,

         12  mortality data review is an effective monitoring

         13  tool, and to date the CDC's mentality data reviews

         14  have shown a stable CJD death since 1985. That is

         15  the classic CJD that we have always been known to

         16  have, with the average annual age adjusted death

         17  rate to be about one death per million people a

         18  year.

         19                 In addition to its ongoing review of

         20  national CJD mortality data, the CDC has also

         21  conducted active CJD surveillance in its four

         22  established emerging infections programs areas in

         23  Minnesota, Oregon, Connecticut, and in the San

         24  Francisco Bay area and in CDC headquarters in

         25  Atlanta.
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          2                 Beginning in 1996, the CDC and the

          3  Council of State and Territorial Epidemiologists, on

          4  the basis of the national CJD mortality data began

          5  ongoing follow-up reviews of clinical and

          6  neuropathology records of CJD cases involving people

          7  younger than 55, that, you know, is the group that

          8  would be most suspicious of somebody who was

          9  diagnosed as classic CJD but they were younger than

         10  55, this triggers a pathology and clinical review to

         11  see if there was a diagnosis that may have been

         12  missed.

         13                 Beginning in 1996, the American

         14  Association of neuropathologists, in collaboration

         15  with the CDC, alerted its members to new variants

         16  CJD pathology, requested that any cases fitting the

         17  new variant description, regardless of the current

         18  clinical diagnosis, or the patient's age be

         19  reported. And in 1997, the National Prion Disease

         20  Pathology Surveillance Center was established at

         21  Case Western University in Cleveland to monitor the

         22  prevalence of prion diseases in the United States

         23  and to investigate possible cases utilizing the

         24  latest technologies.

         25                 By November 2000, clinical and
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          2  neuropathologic record review of 101 CJD patients

          3  under the age of 55, which were reported in the

          4  period for 1994 to 1997 have been completed, and so

          5  far all of these national efforts have detected no

          6  recurrences of new variant CJD in the United States.

          7  Closer to us at the state level, the New York State

          8  Department of Health is conducting ongoing CJD

          9  surveillance and research through its Alzheimer's

         10  Disease and other Dementias Registry, which is a

         11  population-based reporting system established in

         12  1986 for identifying, locating and investigating the

         13  occurrence frequency incidence, cause, effect,

         14  prognosis and other relevant data with respect to

         15  dementias.

         16                 Each time a case of dementia is

         17  diagnosed or confirmed in the state, a confidential

         18  report on the case must by law be submitted to the

         19  registry.

         20                 As part of the national effort to

         21  detect the occurrence of new variant CJD in the

         22  United States, the Registry conducts ongoing CJD

         23  surveillance, linking Registry data to death records

         24  and hospital data. Registry data indicate that there

         25  were 114 CJD deaths reported in New York State in
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          2  the years 1991 through 1998, 27 of which were from

          3  New York City. The Registry has not identified a

          4  case of new variant CJD to date.

          5                 In the City, on March 21, the New

          6  York City Department of Heath proposed to the Board

          7  of Health an amendment of the New York City Health

          8  Code, Section 11.03A to make Creutzfeldt-Jakov

          9  Disease, as well as other transmittable spongiform

         10  encephalopathies mandatorily reportable, as are 72

         11  other diseases and conditions. This step reflects

         12  our recognition that although there had been to date

         13  no cases of new variant CJD in humans or BSE in

         14  cattle in the United States, there are concerns that

         15  cases could occur among US residents in the future,

         16  and, therefore, among New Yorkers, exposed to

         17  contaminated meat overseas, and even though the

         18  federal government has implemented very tough

         19  preventive measures, we must be on the lookout for

         20  locally acquired new variant CJD cases that may

         21  occur at some time in the future.

         22                 I would like to point out that while

         23  the new variant CJD and classic CJD are not yet

         24  reportable diseases in the health code, the Board of

         25  Health will be meeting in June following public
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          2  comment period to vote on that recommendation.

          3                 The Health Code does already require

          4  reporting of any unusual disease manifestation or

          5  cluster which includes new variant CJD and other

          6  transmissible spongiform encephalopathies, not only

          7  are physicians required to report any such unusual

          8  disease manifestations, but neuropathologists, and

          9  certainly other clinicians as well, are keenly aware

         10  of this emerging disease with its potential to

         11  surface here in the United States and they are

         12  communicating with us.

         13                 The Department has received several

         14  reports of suspect new variant CJD in recent years,

         15  in the same way that we investigate other unusual

         16  diseases, we work with the clinician to rapidly

         17  ensure that appropriate laboratory testing has been

         18  carried out to confirm the diagnosis, and to date

         19  each of these cases has been confirmed as classic,

         20  as opposed to this new variant CJD.

         21                 In the event that a case were to be

         22  identified and confirmed in the future, the patient

         23  and the patient's family would be interviewed

         24  extensively to determine possible sources of

         25  exposure, which would include, of course,
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          2  consumption of beef and beef-containing products

          3  from European nations where there is documented BSE,

          4  and/or new variant Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease, and of

          5  course the City Health Department would investigate

          6  in close collaboration with the CDC, the USDA, State

          7  Department of Health, as we already do on an ongoing

          8  basis in other communicable disease areas.

          9                 I should add that while new variant

         10  CJD has not been shown to be transmissible via human

         11  blood, researchers have expressed concern on the

         12  basis of animal studies that this may be possible,

         13  and I know that you are going to be hearing from Dr.

         14  Robert Jones from the New York Blood Center, who

         15  will discuss this at much greater length.

         16                 The United States and several other

         17  nations have implemented policies to minimize the

         18  potential risk of new variant CJD transmission

         19  through blood donation from apparently healthy

         20  persons who may be in the incubation phase of the

         21  disease. Current FDA policy excludes donations from

         22  anyone who lived or visited the United Kingdom for a

         23  total of six months or more from 1980 to 1996.

         24                 Earlier this year, the FDA's advisory

         25  body on blood donation policy recommended expanding
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          2  the exclusion to those who have spent ten or more

          3  years in France, Portugal or Ireland.

          4                 The FDA is also considering requiring

          5  tissue and cell donors to be screened for risk of

          6  exposure to BSE.

          7                 No matter which further precautionary

          8  exclusionary policies are instituted, the potential

          9  donor pool will be reduced, and the New York Blood

         10  Center in particular will be affected, as will our

         11  health care organizations, our institutions, our

         12  hospitals, for a variety of health care needs, and

         13  we must all redouble our efforts to bring in greater

         14  numbers qualified donors to participate regularly in

         15  the months and years ahead.

         16                 In summary, new variant

         17  Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease is a newly emerging

         18  disease not yet seen in the United States,

         19  apparently transmissible from cattle to humans under

         20  certain circumscribed conditions. New variant CJD is

         21  distinctly different from classic CJD, which does

         22  occur worldwide and in this nation, state and city

         23  at the rate on the order of one in a million. While

         24  we are hopeful that this newly emergent human form

         25  of prion-related disease new variant CJD will not be
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          2  found in New York City, we clearly recognize the

          3  possibility that it could occur in the future, we

          4  plan to conduct full investigation of all reports of

          5  potential cases to ensure our ability to rapidly

          6  detect the appearance of new variant CJD or other

          7  transmissible spongiform encephalopathies should

          8  they occur in New York City.

          9                 Thank you. Let me just mention, too,

         10  that to my left is Dr. Marci Leighton, Assistant

         11  Commissioner of the Office of Communicable Disease,

         12  and to my right is Dr. Brian Cherry, who is the lead

         13  Public Health Veterinarian in the Department of

         14  Health, to assist me in answering your questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         16  Commissioner.

         17                 Before we go into the question and

         18  answers, let me just, because some members, again,

         19  there are meetings going on and they are going in

         20  and out, so let me perhaps move to do some house

         21  chores on voting this resolution and filing.

         22                 So, we will now vote to file reso No.

         23  1693-A, that calls upon the Committee on Health to

         24  conduct an oversight hearing on the City's response

         25  to the recent spread of mad cow disease and to
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          2  review the Department of Health efforts to monitor

          3  and control the disease and ensure hospital

          4  compliance with City health laws and regulations

          5  related thereto.

          6                 Will the clerk please call the roll.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Povman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Reed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye. And I would

         13  just like to have it noted that while I am in two

         14  committees at the moment, I was downstairs having

         15  beef for lunch.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I hope it was

         17  from a place that was approved and tested.

         18                 Go ahead.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Moskowitz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

         21                 .

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, here is

         23  what we will do, because I just saw Council Member

         24  Espada walk out of here, and he will be back, and

         25  Council Member Leffler is presiding over the next

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  room, so as soon as they walk in, we will call their

          3  name to vote and then file it. So, let's leave this

          4  open temporarily until they come in, so just bear

          5  with us.

          6                 Commissioner, let me say that in your

          7  testimony you did point out and I am aware that I

          8  believe today the Board of Health is having public

          9  comments on the proposal, and I believe that you

         10  will be voting upon it, or they will be voting some

         11  time in the middle of June; is that correct? Of

         12  which then in your testimony this will be added to

         13  all the other communicable diseases that are

         14  reported or are listed that are mandated to be

         15  reported to your agency; is that correct?

         16                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: That's correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, now, having

         18  said that, and when it kicks in, how will the health

         19  care professionals learn of this new rule to report

         20  CJD and other similar diseases to the Department of

         21  Health, and also I would like to know how will the

         22  specifics related to the incidence of the disease be

         23  made available to health providers in the general

         24  public?

         25                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: We have a City
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          2  Health Information publication that provides

          3  information to the physician provider community

          4  about reporting requirements, as well as emerging

          5  issues in public health that we inform them on an

          6  ongoing basis, so no doubt we will communicate with

          7  all the physicians in the city, inform them of these

          8  reportable conditions. We also frequently do

          9  broadcast faxes to hospitals and health care

         10  organizations to make sure that they are up to date

         11  and their infectious disease officers and nurses and

         12  staff that relate to the reporting of conditions

         13  that are required to be reported to the Health

         14  Department are aware of this as well.

         15                 So, we also are very active in

         16  sending staff from the Health Department to medical

         17  centers, medical schools. We take very seriously the

         18  importance of solid communication between the health

         19  care community and the Department of Health, and as

         20  you know, from the reporting that took place of some

         21  unusual occurring cases of encephalitis by a

         22  physician at Flushing Hospital in the Summer of

         23  1999, we were able to identify what was to be known

         24  as the first West Nile virus appearance in the

         25  western hemisphere. Since then we have been working
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          2  very aggressively to shor up the reporting and

          3  communication that needs to take place, and using

          4  that as a very solid example of the value of having

          5  close ongoing communication between Department of

          6  Health and the health care community.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say, I did

          8  say that Council Member Leffler, who is a member of

          9  this Committee, was presiding over the Public Safety

         10  Committee, and what I will do is now call his name

         11  for him to be able to vote on filing the resolution

         12  which in essence called for this Committee to have

         13  an oversight hearing, and that is what we are doing

         14  now, and that is why we are voting to file it.

         15                 So, Mr. Clerk, would you please call

         16  Council Member Leffler's name.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Leffler.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: This isn't

         19  such a tough one. I vote aye.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And what we will

         21  do is keep the roll call open, because I know that

         22  Council Member Espada is in the room, and I will

         23  give him the opportunity also. But having said that,

         24  why don't you just announce what we have now waiting

         25  for Council Member Espada.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

          3  at five in affirmative, none in the negative, with

          4  no abstentions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

          6                 Now, Neal, let me just share with

          7  you, let me just say as a lay person living in the

          8  City of New York, I am one of those guys that

          9  whenever I get a chance to, I do one of these

         10  things, what is it, the potato couch person, and

         11  here is what I have seen.

         12                 Besides the reporting about, and

         13  especially when you watch the news during 6:30 and

         14  7:00 which is the national news, they have focus on

         15  that European and Great Britain where you are

         16  constantly seeing these cows, and in some cases you

         17  see cows, like they are going into some kind of,

         18  having an attack.

         19                 Recently I have also seen that now,

         20  and because we are about to have summer around the

         21  corner and people will be going from vacation, I am

         22  already seeing people getting off planes, especially

         23  from Europe and England where now they are asked to

         24  step at a certain location to make sure that their

         25  feet or their footwear are not contaminated where
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          2  they are wiped off.

          3                 Now, having said that, besides what

          4  you just answered in terms of how the professionals,

          5  how are you going to inform and educate the public

          6  within the City of New York on not only the things,

          7  you know, where are we, what are we going to do, so

          8  that at the least -- you know, I look at you, I am

          9  reminded of the competition with managed care where

         10  you are now mandated to sign up, if you are not in

         11  it they automatically sign you up into some kind of

         12  a plan; how are we going to educate the public in

         13  the City of New York about the steps that you are

         14  taking, the new rules, et cetera?

         15                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Well, as you

         16  know, the media has a great thirst for information

         17  related to mad cow disease as they do West Nile

         18  Virus, and it makes it much -- it makes the task of

         19  informing the public not so very difficult. Clearly,

         20  or priority right now is educating the health

         21  provider community so that dementia, which appears,

         22  you know, as a disease entity, that might be

         23  considered Alzheimer's, might be something called

         24  multi-infarct dementia, because of cardiovascular

         25  causes or any other cause of dementia is being
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          2  reported to the State Registry, and in turn is

          3  providing us and the State Department of Health the

          4  opportunity to ensure that the right testing is

          5  being done by the health care community to make a

          6  very strong and clear and firm diagnosis, and this

          7  will require in many instances autopsy and study of

          8  brain tissue specimens, but there is index of

          9  suspicion.

         10                 As I said earlier, we have a much

         11  younger age of onset of new variant CJD than we have

         12  with regular CJD or we have, as you know, with

         13  Alzheimer's, so cases of dementia that appear in

         14  younger people should certainly stimulate a full and

         15  thorough investigation that would rule out a larger

         16  public health issue such as if we were to make a

         17  diagnosis of new variant CJD and determine that it

         18  were locally acquired.

         19                 So, I think we are making good steps

         20  now by proposing a Health Code amendment that would

         21  add the burden of reporting of CJD and new variant

         22  CJD to the Health Department, we will follow that up

         23  with information in communications that will go back

         24  and forth between the City Health Department, the

         25  State Health Department and our health provider
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          2  community, and as we go along, obviously there will

          3  be a need to inform the public as to what is going

          4  on in our efforts to protect their health and

          5  safety.

          6                 So, I think that this hearing today

          7  provides one immediate step to allow the public to

          8  hear further about what is going on at the national,

          9  state and local level with regard to the animal form

         10  of this prion-related disease, as well as our

         11  efforts to ensure proper detection in human beings

         12  if it were to occur.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before I turn it

         14  to the Chair of the Subcommittee and the sponsor of

         15  this resolution, let me perhaps again walk through a

         16  scenario that I just need to understand, and in your

         17  testimony you pointed out that while the Board of

         18  Health is currently in a proposal having public

         19  comments and hopefully vote upon it in June, in your

         20  testimony I believe I remember correctly you said

         21  that they are mandated to report to your agency, and

         22  I don't remember the area, but let me perhaps pick

         23  up on that, and you know what I am referring to.

         24                 Let's take the case, and in this

         25  case, in Staten Island, they don't have HHC
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          2  facilities, it was in a voluntary hospital, and if I

          3  remember listening to my colleague when he had an

          4  opening statement, he pointed out that one of the

          5  things in order to verify or at least know what it

          6  is or not was by an autopsy, one, the case in Staten

          7  Island, are you aware of this case that has led this

          8  resolution?

          9                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes, we are.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, was that

         11  case reported to your agency by a voluntary

         12  hospital?

         13                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: I will let Dr.

         14  Leighton tell you. It was reported to us.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         16  Actually, the case was diagnosed with the classic

         17  form of CJD, which by definition would not be

         18  reportable because it wasn't in a younger-aged

         19  patient, or it didn't have any of those clinical

         20  manifestations that would suggest the possibility of

         21  new variant CJD. They did call because they had

         22  questions about the handling of the corpse as far as

         23  safety precautions, so we actually were aware of it

         24  very early on, and then we also got a call through

         25  the City Council when the media reports came back,
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          2  and we reinvestigated the case to make absolutely

          3  sure that it was the classic and not the new variant

          4  form.

          5                 But classic CJD, up until the

          6  resolution is put into effect by itself, wouldn't be

          7  reportable under that unusual manifestation clause

          8  because it is a rare, though it is a disease that

          9  does occur in New York City, it is just that if it

         10  occurred in a younger patient or had any of these

         11  unusual manifestations that might suggest new

         12  variant, it would be reportable, but to ensure that

         13  we hear about all cases of transmissible spongiform

         14  encephalopathy, we decided to mandate that through

         15  the Board of Health to ensure we don't miss any

         16  cases.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And that will

         18  start after June?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         20  Right. Though, you know, physicians should, if they

         21  saw a suspect case of what they thought was new

         22  variant, by definition that would be an unusual

         23  disease manifestation in the United States, and we

         24  would hope they would call us, but to make that more

         25  official, that is why we went ahead and made it
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          2  reportable.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, I understand

          4  that. Unfortunately, let me tell you what the

          5  damage, which is good and it is bad. The fact was

          6  that this all started because a newspaper, and of

          7  course, in Staten Island that newspaper covers

          8  issues that every elected official in the island, it

          9  is like a Bible, they read that paper every single

         10  day. It's like when I go home it is El Diario

         11  Laprenza (phonetic), they have the Staten Island

         12  Advance, the fact is that it created an environment,

         13  which those who are not in the profession or are not

         14  in the health field are worried, because it is not

         15  only Staten Island, but they do have a lot of

         16  restaurants and fastfood places and what have you.

         17  And, so, in the case of this individual, has there

         18  been any determination made from what happened to

         19  him?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         21  Again, based on -- an autopsy was not done.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why was that,

         23  since there was a question mark?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         25  Based on, again, the clinical suspicion of the new
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          2  variant form of CJD is based on a constellation of

          3  symptoms and also the age of the patient. But this

          4  patient did not have any of the manifestations of

          5  the new variant form, so that it really, if he did,

          6  or a patient did, we would work with the physician

          7  and family and possibly the Medical Examiner's

          8  Office to try to ensure that an autopsy was done,

          9  but given that CJD is a recognized disease in this

         10  country, the classic form, there was really no

         11  indication to acquire an autopsy, especially against

         12  the family's wishes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So you are saying

         14  that possibly the family chose not to?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Yes,

         16  I don't remember the particular's in this instance.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You don't, okay.

         18                 DR. LEIGHTON: But if I can just

         19  clarify again, especially when the disease is

         20  reportable, and the characteristics that would make

         21  us more concerned to pursue an autopsy if the

         22  patient has just died or to alert the physicians and

         23  the family of the importance of doing that when the

         24  patient dies, because both of these diseases,

         25  unfortunately, are invariably fatal, are those of
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          2  the age characteristics of the patient, and

          3  especially the clinical characteristics, including

          4  the findings on something called an EEG or an

          5  electroencephalogram, there are indications that

          6  would make us more worried about the variant form.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, again, as

          8  someone as a layperson, tell me the difference, or

          9  what would be the difference if this proposed

         10  regulation was into effect then, which it was not?

         11                 What is the difference between this

         12  proposal that will go into effect in June, and would

         13  we, if this rule was in effect, would we then --

         14  because the definition changes from what you are

         15  looking at, because this gentleman happened to be an

         16  elderly person, but if this rule goes into effect,

         17  it would also apply to this person?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         19  Sure. Again, that clause that Dr. Cohen referred to,

         20  the unusual manifestation of illness, obviously is

         21  very vague and wide open, but CJD by itself would

         22  not be reportable under that clause, and we decided

         23  not to make new variant CJD reportable, we decided

         24  to make all syndromes of transmissible spongiform

         25  encephalopathy reportable so that CJD would be
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          2  included in there, and the most CJD cases, as was

          3  mentioned, will be sporadic, occasionally there will

          4  be a familial case, our ability to detect the new

          5  variant requires us to investigate all of them to

          6  make sure that we don't miss any cases. So, it gives

          7  us the ability to hear about CJD, the classic form,

          8  that we wouldn't hear about just under that clause.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But, again, and

         10  please bear with me --

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         12  Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If the rule was

         14  in place today and this scenario happened, one, you

         15  will know about it under the rules, correct?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Yes,

         17  we are going to do our best to make sure that

         18  physicians know about this reportable condition as

         19  Dr. Cohen outlined. And, again, I should point out

         20  we did hear about this case before the newspaper

         21  reports.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Please don't

         23  cloud the issue.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         25  Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Because who ever

          3  is watching Crosswalks will be watching this hearing

          4  all weekend, and you know, sometimes you get

          5  confused. My colleague next to me always says to me

          6  I am more confused now. Let me start again.

          7                 You are proposing a rule because you

          8  agree that in order to get a handle on allegations

          9  or the perception, you then, the Commissioner placed

         10  before the Board of Health to now mandate, and you

         11  really, not only are you zeroing in on CJD as he

         12  defined it, but you are also leaving a window open,

         13  and then you generally said other things -- so far

         14  so good, Neal?

         15                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

         17                 So now it is in place. Now what is it

         18  you are going to get out of this rule that is

         19  different so that if a case like the one in Staten

         20  Island occurs again, one, you will know about it,

         21  because it is no longer just youth -- you know, I am

         22  trying to follow the scenario and sometimes in the

         23  scenario I lose my point -- tell me, what are you

         24  going to do now that will protect the people of New

         25  York City at least, not only in terms of healthwise,
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          2  but assuring them that the Department of Health is

          3  one step ahead so they are comfortable, so if I go

          4  to McDonalds, or if I go to Burger King or I go to

          5  Popeye or I go to Gwanky Swanky, that if I do decide

          6  to indulge in meat, that I am not scared based upon

          7  what I see by the media's reporting, which I am not

          8  criticizing it, but right now what I am seeing on

          9  television is people getting off airplanes, and the

         10  oceanliners, cruises, and so my point is, tell me

         11  what the difference, once you have the reporting and

         12  you suspect something, then walk me, what is it you

         13  are going to do that is different from why this

         14  resolution was presented because of frustration, and

         15  the lack of knowledgeable information, which is --

         16  and if you listen to this, still, you noticed, Neal,

         17  you were sitting in the room, the Council Member

         18  still has doubt whether or not this gentleman was or

         19  wasn't. Now, he is not a doctor, but he is an

         20  elected official, and it happens to be in the

         21  borough that he represents, and I guess what I am

         22  saying is, how do I go back to my own constituency

         23  that is a little different from Staten Island, but

         24  we have Burger King, we have McDonalds, guess what?

         25  We even have restaurants, we have a lot of
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          2  restaurants there, and that is the point. If we are

          3  going to put something on television, then what is

          4  it that we tell the people of New York City in terms

          5  of the Department of Health, how are you going to

          6  monitor and protect them from information that is

          7  really not founded based upon professional data?

          8                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: The Health Code

          9  resolution, if passed, and I expect it will, will

         10  provide us with a significant opportunity of

         11  oversight of the way that cases of dementia are

         12  being diagnosed so that in the event when this case

         13  is reported to us as CJD, for example, if we have a

         14  suspicion based upon clinical science, based upon

         15  evidence of the electroencephalogram, age onset,

         16  that we might be dealing with a case of new variant

         17  CJD, then we could mandate because of the potential

         18  public health threat an autopsy and really uncover

         19  and make a firm diagnosis. In this case we would not

         20  because we did not deem the evidence to reach the

         21  threshold where we would override what may have been

         22  a families objection to an autopsy. But if we had

         23  evidence, with the new Health Code, receiving this

         24  information from the hospital, from the physician,

         25  if the evidence pointed to a distinct possibility
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          2  that we would have potentially a new variant case,

          3  then we would have required an investigation to

          4  ensure the health and safety of New Yorkers, and

          5  override the individual family -- obviously

          6  something that we would not want to do unless we had

          7  good, solid evidence that created a suspicion that

          8  we needed to go further.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: So, it's a check

         11  and a balance that provides New Yorkers with a

         12  measure of comfort, I would hope, given that with

         13  CJD, we are talking about usually an incidence of

         14  one per million New Yorkers per year, so there are

         15  only a handful of cases, so it's a small number that

         16  gives us comfort because we will now be hearing

         17  about these cases, and when there is a cluster of

         18  information that would suggest we are dealing with

         19  something different, like new variant CJD, we can

         20  ensure that the proper investigation is carried out.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: One more thing.

         22  Not only as Commissioner of Health, but you are also

         23  a member of the Health and Hospitals Corporation

         24  Board of Directors, and, so, is it fair to say that

         25  as of this moment you are not aware either as
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          2  Commissioner of Health or as a member of the Board

          3  of any possible reported cases that either falls

          4  under the old way of mandating, given the definition

          5  you just defined, and, of course, under the new

          6  rules that won't happen until after June, correct?

          7  But take the case again, have there been any cases

          8  that have been brought to your attention that might

          9  be on the borderline or fringes around the condition

         10  that you referred to?

         11                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: None whatsoever.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         13  Provenzano.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         15  I have two questions.

         16                 Just to clarify things in my mind.

         17  While we are talking about classic CJD, and you gave

         18  one, two, three ways that it is believed to exist,

         19  three forms, the third one being possibly

         20  transmitted or contracted from medical instruments

         21  or tainted human tissue, you know, corneal

         22  transplants, what have you, could you just expand on

         23  that a little bit? Where a person gets a corneal

         24  transplant, injection of human growth hormone, are

         25  you saying that when you contract it this way it is
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          2  contracted from another human being? How did these

          3  things, the cornea or the lining of the brain or

          4  whatever get contaminated in order for it to be

          5  transmitted to somebody else? Do I make any sense.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

          7  will try and answer that.

          8                 There have been several cases

          9  reported in the medical literature, and of these

         10  they have usually been able to go back and find that

         11  the donor patient had evidence, or early evidence

         12  potentially of CJD, so there is some concern that

         13  the person who donated these tissues was the source

         14  of the infection.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, okay.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Very

         17  rare, but it has happened, and it has resulted in

         18  better screening for these types of transplants. If

         19  you will notice the types of tissues mentioned, they

         20  are all neurologic tissues, so it requires brain or

         21  nerve tissue in order to be transmissible. Very rare

         22  but it has been reported.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So that

         24  person probably had the disease.

         25                 On page five, we are talking about
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          2  the British patients that acquired new variant CJD,

          3  which is mad cow, and you said that the patients

          4  most likely got the disease from beef. Now I go back

          5  to the testimony of Dr. Huntley, who said that the

          6  agent that causes this disease is found in brain

          7  tissue, spinal cord, retina, now, these are not

          8  parts -- and from that it doesn't travel through

          9  other parts of the animal. Now, these are not

         10  necessarily parts of the animal that we eat when we

         11  are eating beef, so if these patients most likely

         12  died from eating beef, I don't get -- how did they

         13  get it? I mean, those aren't the parts of the cow

         14  that we usually eat.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: See, those are

         16  the reasons why those of us who are not professional

         17  in this area get more confused every time we see

         18  something on television, and I guess what we are

         19  trying to do is how do we educate and assure the

         20  average person who really doesn't know all of this

         21  technical stuff, how do you break it down in simple

         22  terms so they understand it?

         23                 DR. CHERRY: I will see if I can

         24  answer that.

         25                 The assumption with these patients

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  who had eaten beef and the connection with them,

          3  again, because of the long incubation period the

          4  assumption was that they are likely to have eaten

          5  this quite a bit before the ban on beef tissues, on

          6  nerve tissues in human consumption were put in place

          7  in the United Kingdom, in fact probably before

          8  bovine spongiform encephalopathy may have even been

          9  recognized. So, if you look back at some of the

         10  products, ground meat products, processed beef, for

         11  example, may have contained some central nervous

         12  system tissue, spinal cord or brain. People do,

         13  although not routinely, make a practice of eating

         14  some nerve tissues and some cuts of beef, for

         15  example, a T-bone steak, would contain that dorsal

         16  root ganglion tissue that Dr. Huntley referred to.

         17  So, it is possible that those types of beef did.

         18                 The routine types of meat, the most

         19  common cuts of meat that people eat do not contain

         20  central nervous system tissue.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, that

         22  makes sense.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: T-bone does?

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, it

         25  could.
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          2                 DR. CHERRY: It can. It can. As long

          3  as you don't eat them in a BSE affected country.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, that

          5  really clears it up for me.

          6                 But now, last question, is mad cow,

          7  the new variant CJD, kind of an offshoot from the

          8  classic since the new variant has only appeared

          9  rather recently?

         10                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: I think offshoot

         11  would be overstating the link. They are both related

         12  to the misshape in protein or prion, they both

         13  produce dementias, and they do have -- there is

         14  overlap in the clinical science but many significant

         15  differences as well. And classic, there is no

         16  evidence of the acquisition of this through the

         17  ingestion of any food product whatsoever.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         19  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         21  Fiala.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Welcome,

         23  Commissioner, Doctors.

         24                 I have a series of questions, I will

         25  try to run through them very quickly.
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          2                 I raised this issue with you all back

          3  last year in November following reports in the local

          4  press, and the Chairman alluded to the 78-year-old

          5  man. I am curious, did the hospital report the

          6  death? I was under the impression, based on past

          7  discussions, no report was made.

          8                 Let me back up here. My understanding

          9  now, on March 15th of this year at the budget

         10  hearings that the Chairman held, I raised the issue,

         11  we have been asking for making this reportable and

         12  establishing protocols, and the Commissioner alluded

         13  to the fact on March 15th that the Board at its next

         14  meeting would be voting on amending the health law.

         15  I think that is a wonderful thing, and it allows us

         16  to take the steps that you alluded to.

         17                 But prior to the adoption of that new

         18  rule or that amended health rule, my understanding,

         19  based on discussions from your office was that an

         20  infectious control nurse would have the

         21  responsibility of reporting cases, and that no such

         22  report was made on this particular individual.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

         24  Sure, I will answer that. When this is reportable,

         25  or even under the unusual manifestation clause, any
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          2  health care provider, including the physicians that

          3  are seeing the patient would be required to report.

          4                 In this particular case, the hospital

          5  did call but not to report the case, because it

          6  didn't need any indication for reporting, because

          7  they had a question about how to handle the corpse

          8  and the funeral home had a question, so I became

          9  aware of it on the day of the death because of that

         10  issue, not as a mandated report.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Yes.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: So

         13  when your call came in it was a case that I was

         14  aware of, just to clarify.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, in essence,

         16  it did not fall within the area that you define, it

         17  just so happened that because of a situation that

         18  perhaps they didn't know how to deal with it, they

         19  reached out to the Department of Health, I think

         20  that is what I am hearing here?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: We

         22  didn't clarify that before, but yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: However, and,

         24  again, I will turn it back to Steve, once the rules

         25  are promulgated, once the rules are adopted, then we
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          2  won't -- I mean, automatically they will have to

          3  report that?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Whether it is a

          6  question or what have you, they have to report it?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON:

          8  Right, they would.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry,

         10  Steve.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: That's quite

         12  all right. That helps me a great deal.

         13                 This is a report, something I never

         14  thought I would take an interest in to read. This is

         15  a report to embalmers, funeral directors. I would

         16  like to read you just very quickly, it will take 30

         17  seconds, the opening remarks here.

         18                 "We have survived the emergence of

         19  TB, polio, hepatitis, HIV/AIDS, because we have

         20  formaldehyde and other embalming chemicals that

         21  effectively kill bacteria and viruses that cause

         22  these diseases and we have learned to protect

         23  ourselves from infection during the embalming

         24  process. As long as we never encounter an organism

         25  that is resistant to formaldehyde or the other
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          2  embalming chemicals, and as long as we have the

          3  means to protect ourselves, we will always be able

          4  to serve the public with our skills. But what if in

          5  the future an organism comes along that we cannot

          6  destroy through embalming, what then? Well, such is

          7  the future now, such a disease exists. There is no

          8  diagnostic test for it. You can have it for up to 25

          9  years and not know it. There is no vaccine, there is

         10  no cure, there is no treatment. It is an infection,

         11  it is always fatal, formaldehyde doesn't touch it,

         12  there are no embalming chemicals that will kill it,

         13  common methods of disinfection and sterilization

         14  won't kill it, it is called CJD."

         15                 I think you see the magnitude of the

         16  problem, and I am still uncertain as to whether or

         17  not this is a transmittable disease or not. So, let

         18  me ask with respect to our blood supply, the Red

         19  Cross recommended that blood donors who lived in

         20  Western Europe be deferred from donating blood in

         21  this country because of the risk of those recipients

         22  would have with contracting CJD, yet according to

         23  the New York Blood Center, the largest blood

         24  supplier in New York City, 25 percent of it anyway

         25  in the New York area comes from Western Europe. Do
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          2  you think there is a health risk from variant CJD

          3  from blood, donated blood? And as a follow-up, have

          4  there been any studies in whether variant CJD is

          5  transmittable through blood?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

          7  will try and answer that one as well. I am aware

          8  that in Britain they have looked at this issue. To

          9  date there has not been an increased incidence among

         10  those people who are more likely to get blood

         11  transfusions, such as hemophiliacs and others. And

         12  as far as anyone knows, there has never been a case

         13  that has been transmitted by blood, but because of

         14  the theoretical possibility, the FDA recommended

         15  that the exclusion of people that had spent six

         16  months or more in Great Britain, and recently

         17  extended that to include people who have lived for

         18  longer periods of time in other countries where BSE

         19  has been found.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Now,

         21  Councilwoman Provenzano alluded to the fact, and

         22  cornea transplants, there is the possibility that

         23  the disease CJD can be transmitted through cornea

         24  transplants, right?

         25                 DR. CHERRY: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: And I learned

          3  early on, and this amazed me, unlike all these other

          4  diseases that I have mentioned, and obviously the

          5  one that I think most people are familiar with that

          6  scares the hell out of us is HIV/AIDS. HIV/AIDS dies

          7  when you die, but CJD apparently lives on, that's

          8  why there is that report. And just so you know, the

          9  body in question, the 78-year-old man, was bagged in

         10  a protective bag, sealed in a coffin and the family

         11  wasn't even able to view him for such fear, dreaded

         12  fear on the part of the funeral directors and health

         13  professionals. I am just wondering, if it can be

         14  transmitted through a cornea transplant, or if I

         15  have CJD and you don't know about it, and you

         16  perform some kind of an invasive surgery on me, and

         17  Madeline Provenzano goes in to get surgery on

         18  something and you use the scalpel or the instrument,

         19  am I correct, and I have spoken to some university

         20  scientists, as well as some people in the forefront

         21  of this effort who will testify later, but the only

         22  way to protect against, to provide absolute

         23  assurance that you won't engage in the transmission,

         24  is to destroy the actual instruments because soap

         25  and water or sterilization and all of that, it
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          2  doesn't work; is that accurate?

          3                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: You are correct.

          4  The only absolute way to ensure the possible impact

          5  the instrumentation would have in transferring a

          6  prion, one of these misshapen proteins, in carrying

          7  out such a procedure would be through disposable

          8  instruments.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now I am really

         10  confused. Let me go back to what I thought I heard,

         11  and just bear with me for a second, I am just a

         12  simple guy from Brooklyn, who for the next eight

         13  months will still preside over this Committee.

         14                 Commissioner, you said when I was

         15  discussing it with you on this gentleman, and

         16  somewhere along the line the terminology of an

         17  autopsy was mentioned, I guess the perception I got

         18  was if the family chose not to have it done, that is

         19  why it was not done. So, the question which I was

         20  leading to is, if we did it we would know whether he

         21  did or he did not, but it was never done. So, I went

         22  along with the thinking that the family requested

         23  not to do it. Now I hear my colleague talk about a

         24  body bag, a coffin, and because of fear by the

         25  funeral director, even today we wouldn't know really

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  what caused this man to die. And, again, as a lay

          3  person, I am a little confused here.

          4                 Now, I understand after the June

          5  15th, or whatever the date is, is it June 15th? When

          6  is the actual vote in June?

          7                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: June 15 is

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why did you pick

         10  the day I was born? Are you trying to send me a

         11  message? No, no.

         12                 Anyway, but the point is, again, he

         13  did not qualify under those things which they still

         14  have to mandate reports. The only reason why you

         15  knew about it was because of this question and fear.

         16  Again, how --

         17                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Let me in

         18  response to that and to Council Member Fiala's

         19  comments, you know, I think the reaction of the

         20  funeral home, the procedures that were taken to be

         21  sure the safety, body bag, is probably akin to the

         22  early days of HIV infection as we knew it, HIV/AIDS,

         23  when people were so frightened that they wouldn't go

         24  walk into a room with an individual with HIV without

         25  having some fear of possible exposure. And
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          2  obviously, as time went on we understood that that

          3  was a grave overreaction and that the possible risks

          4  were associated with exchange of bodily fluids that

          5  were not going to occur through the routine contact

          6  that people would have with each other, such is the

          7  case I believe right now with regard to that process

          8  that the Councilman described where it obviously

          9  points to the need to educate the industry around

         10  the potential risks to direct infected brain tissue,

         11  but not through contact with corpses that would lead

         12  them to fear and take extraordinary precautions that

         13  would impact on the experience of the morning and

         14  funeral of a family that wanted to express its final

         15  goodbye to a loved one.

         16                 There are decontamination measures

         17  that are recommended to the industry, and I have a

         18  report here, you can with these instruments have an

         19  enhanced level of sterilization or autoclaving that

         20  goes beyond the usual that is applied to the

         21  pathogens of viruses and bacteria that would

         22  normally sterilize these instruments, both chemical

         23  and steam autoclaving, and I won't read this in

         24  detail, but the bottom line is that we are talking

         25  about exposure to infected neurological tissue that
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          2  does not take place in the routine management of a

          3  patient, and applies more to a neuropathologist and

          4  to someone who might be doing an autopsy than it

          5  would be to a health care provider.

          6                 So, I think what you are pointing to

          7  is that as we go along now, and as people have

          8  gotten frightened by mad cow disease, we do have an

          9  entity that does occur, one in a million but it does

         10  occur, there have been cases that are reported to us

         11  in the City every year, as you would expect in a

         12  City of eight million, that we need to educate that

         13  industry to ensure that we are not taking steps that

         14  would be a great overreaction and induce greater

         15  fear in the public and interfere with the experience

         16  that family members would have in mourning the loss

         17  of their loved ones.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: One more point

         19  and then I will turn it back again. I was both in

         20  the Assembly and in the City Council when that area

         21  that you referred to with the HIV and AIDS, and let

         22  me tell you, it took awhile before the industry was

         23  really educated, and, so, I am just looking at the

         24  window of opportunity between this hearing and June

         25  15th when now it is mandated, and, again, then walk
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          2  me through that in a similar situation, forget

          3  Staten Island, in Brooklyn, a similar situation

          4  occurs, and now because of fear by an industry, in

          5  this case a fuel director, what would this

          6  regulation do that would change what was not done in

          7  this case?

          8                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: It would mandate

          9  the reporting of the case to the Department of

         10  Health.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

         12                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: That would

         13  require us on receiving that information to

         14  investigate based on clinical signs, information

         15  gathering that we would do in our office, and

         16  determine whether we feel that the diagnosis,

         17  presumably where we would be receiving a diagnosis

         18  of CJD, classic Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease, appear to

         19  be consistent with all the clinical and pathological

         20  evidence that was available to the doctor and to the

         21  hospital at that time, and if it were, we would be

         22  satisfied, no autopsy would be absolutely required,

         23  although it might be recommended, and that would in

         24  turn be reported to the State Registry as well as

         25  they have a larger Alzheimer's Disease and dementia
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          2  registry so that we can fully track and monitor the

          3  dementias and if there are any trends within the

          4  City or outside the City, they would have a

          5  statewide perspective that which they would share

          6  with the CDC, as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, Council

          8  member?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Commissioner,

         10  my concern isn't that you all don't know enough

         11  about this subject. I believe you are on top of the

         12  situation, at least scientifically. My concern is,

         13  when we had our meeting before this meeting, I met

         14  with the two chairs and their respective counsels,

         15  you know, we are going all over this, this is the

         16  meat inspection process, a simplification of just

         17  meat inspection. You can see the clinical linkages

         18  and how cumbersome it is. I am concerned that there

         19  are disconnects in the critical linkages in our City

         20  hospital system, our private hospitals, as the

         21  Chairman said, not-for-profits and others, where

         22  they just don't know what is going on, and I want to

         23  make sure that we establish those protocols. It's

         24  not enough that we know -- not me, you -- it is not

         25  enough that you know what is going on, the
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          2  Department of Health, it is do those professionals,

          3  do those staffers in our hospitals, in our nursing

          4  homes, are they aware of what is going on?

          5                 And I raise the issue of the funeral

          6  directors just to show you the scare that is out

          7  there, how scared people are, and that there isn't a

          8  sufficient level of education, and I happen to be

          9  one of those people who thinks it is better to take

         10  more precaution than not enough. But let me ask you

         11  this, reporting is obviously the critical thing

         12  here, and, again, I commend you for taking that step

         13  and look forward to that June 15th, happy birthday

         14  early on, Mr. Chair, that will allow us to assess if

         15  there are any real deficiencies. But let me just

         16  highlight one thing that may put this into

         17  perspective to get a sense of that we really don't

         18  have a handle on it and in your testimony on page

         19  seven, you note that CJD occurs in one case per

         20  million, and that there were 27 cases in New York

         21  City from 1991 to 1998. If that assessment is

         22  correct, then isn't there a significant

         23  underreporting of this disease, based on the

         24  population and based on the number of years?

         25  Shouldn't there have been maybe 65 cases reported?
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          2                 I don't expect an answer because I

          3  know this is difficult, and I am not a scientist, I

          4  am certainly not a health professional, but I want

          5  to point out that all of us are confused on this

          6  subject and indeed the reports, the testimony that

          7  you have provided could be perceived as being

          8  deficient. I am not saying it is, but it could be

          9  perceived as being deficient. It is certainly, at

         10  the very minimum begs the question are there

         11  sufficient -- is the linkages between the various

         12  levels of government, various health institutions

         13  and the health institutions, or the governmental

         14  health institutions to the community-based health

         15  institutions sufficient? Is your confidence level

         16  high that this City is prepared to monitor the

         17  situation and has in place or will have in place

         18  post January 15th sufficient protocols? We know that

         19  the World Health Organization and the United Nations

         20  said a few months ago, they themselves were

         21  concerned that governments around the globe were

         22  being lax in their approach to dealing with this

         23  issue. So, post June 15th is your confidence level

         24  high that we will be in a position to do the

         25  monitoring and the education, the outreach and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  assessments, just in case? Because West Nile, no one

          3  would have thought West Nile would come to New York

          4  City and I think you alluded in our meeting, Mr.

          5  Chairman, it was misdiagosed two times prior anyway,

          6  so diseases are global in nature and we have got to

          7  do everything we can to try and get ahead of the

          8  curve, are we going to be there post June 15th?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LEIGHTON: I

         10  will answer that. The numbers that Dr. Cohen

         11  presented were from the New York State Department of

         12  Health Alzheimer's Registry where they have been

         13  tracking CJD for a number of years, and I, and the

         14  State Health Department, have discussed the fact

         15  that our numbers are less than the national

         16  estimates. And they are estimates, the one per

         17  million. Even at the State level the crude rate is

         18  estimated to be about 0.8 per million, while here in

         19  the City it is about 0.5. And to help assess that,

         20  that is one reason we are looking forward to having

         21  the ability to track this more closely. And you are

         22  right, for us to track this disease it is going to

         23  require a lot of effort on our part. We ask

         24  physicians to report up to 70 different diseases and

         25  it's an ongoing challenge to make sure that all the
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          2  physicians in New York City know what is on that

          3  list, know how to contact us and so we will be doing

          4  some active outreach as soon as it becomes

          5  reportable to let them know what to report, how to

          6  report, and most importantly, the importance of an

          7  autopsy, to know the diagnosis for sure.

          8                 But it is not going to be something

          9  that it becomes reportable and then we sit back in

         10  our office and twiddle our thumbs and wait for the

         11  first phone call, it is going to require a lot of

         12  active outreach on our part, and we will target

         13  those doctors who are most likely to see these

         14  cases. We will reach out to neuropathologists,

         15  neurologists, geriatricians who may be seeing

         16  patients with Alzheimer's or dementia, people who

         17  take care of adults because of the CJD being more

         18  common in that population.

         19                 We have done similar things, both

         20  with West Nile, reaching out to infectious disease

         21  doctors, especially, and for other diseases that may

         22  present to a certain type of specialist, we do

         23  active outreach to those doctors to make sure that

         24  we hear about every potential case.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: And may I just
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          2  have another minute, Mr. Chairman?

          3                 Let's move away from -- and first of

          4  all, thank you for your answer and this has been a

          5  productive exercise for us all, because it's a big

          6  issue.

          7                 I want to move away from the hospital

          8  end of it, hospital compliance to consumer-based and

          9  consumer safety issues. Those of us up here have

         10  offered the bill which will be heard in another

         11  committee, the Contracts Committee, the New York

         12  City Meat Safety Bill, which establishes protocols

         13  for labeling and reporting and New York City

         14  purchases about $90 million to $100 million a year

         15  worth of beef and meat products, and it is provided

         16  to patients in hospitals, seniors in our senior

         17  centers, prisoners in our prisons, in our jails. The

         18  Board of Education serves more meals per day than

         19  any other entity in the United States, with the

         20  exception of the Department of Defense, to feed our

         21  military, obviously. So, we are talking about a lot

         22  of hamburgers and a lot of meat. Is the Department

         23  of Health, would the Department of Health be

         24  amenable to our effort to require that contractors

         25  doing business with the City of New York certify
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          2  that they are meeting FDA regulations and conform

          3  with our Meat Safety Bill?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Rather than being

          5  put on the spot, Commissioner Neal Cohen, you heard

          6  the question, why don't you do this, because I don't

          7  expect you on the spot to answer that, however, why

          8  don't you look at that question and then get back to

          9  us with respect to that.

         10                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Unless you want

         12  to --

         13                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: We will try to. I

         14  will have Michelle Robinson respond, who is Deputy

         15  Director of our Inspections Program, and she can

         16  sort of clarify for you what some of the steps are

         17  that are taken in the inspection program currently

         18  to ensure the health and safety of the meats that

         19  are being passed on to consumers, and there is no

         20  question that we would value having other ways of

         21  ensuring good practice and compliance with standards

         22  that protect health and safety of New Yorkers, but

         23  we will kind of give you an overview of that as we

         24  now perform it.

         25                 MS. ROBINSON: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Michelle Robinson. Currently all meat products

          3  that are in retail restaurants are required to come

          4  from an approved source, and as you already have

          5  learned the required source is having the United

          6  States Department of Agriculture seal, and the Board

          7  of Education, just like any other food service

          8  operation, is also required to follow those

          9  guidelines and rules, and those rules are already in

         10  the New York City Health Code and the New York State

         11  Sanitary Code.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This picks up to,

         16  and stay there because that will be my last; and

         17  that is, you were in the room, because I understand

         18  that the federal government has a list of places

         19  that are approved, i.e. meat, and the state gets it

         20  and you get it also, yes?

         21                 MS. ROBINSON: I was not sure what

         22  that gentleman was talking about. My knowledge,

         23  there is no list from the USDA for a retail level,

         24  the only list that we actually do have is for

         25  actually shellfish. Meats are required to have the
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          2  USDA seal. Any meat that does not have the USDA

          3  Department seal is considered to be adulterated.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I think the list

          5  is for feed mills. The list --

          6                 MS. ROBINSON: That's the feed for

          7  cattle, we are at restaurants.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: All right, so

          9  then that answers I believe my question, is that

         10  when your inspectors, Commissioner Neal Cohen, go

         11  out to inspect restaurants, I guess that is an area

         12  that they don't, when they look at it they are

         13  looking at a protocol that you put into place from

         14  the Department of Health, correct?

         15                 MS. ROBINSON: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then there is no,

         17  or you do not carry with you a protocol that says

         18  that the meat that they are serving has been

         19  approved by the proper governmental bodies; is that

         20  fair to say?

         21                 MS. ROBINSON: That is very fair to

         22  say. Our inspectors are trained to look at the

         23  receiving of any source of food as which you might

         24  call a critical control point, not being able to

         25  identify any source of food will make the food
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          2  adulterated and that food will be discarded, the

          3  establishment closed or the food embargoed, that is

          4  protocol.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I have no

          6  more questions.

          7                 Neal, I want to personally thank you

          8  for your patients in sitting here, and I have to say

          9  that this has been very, at least for me very

         10  educational, and, again, my only concern is, again,

         11  while tragic for whatever reason this elderly person

         12  died, I just don't want people to use that as a

         13  means of this constant thinking that we are not

         14  doing something that we should be doing, and

         15  hopefully that would be taken care of once the June

         16  15th rules kicks in. And once that is voted upon,

         17  that kicks in immediately?

         18                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: I believe it is

         19  30 days.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thirty days. So,

         21  hopefully by the middle of July, then that is

         22  mandated to comply with?

         23                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES:  Now, if they

         25  don't -- let's follow it one more time and then I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  will stop. If they don't, how do you make sure that

          3  that which you have now promulgated gets carried

          4  out? Are there any violations, or any fines or

          5  something?

          6                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: There is within

          7  Health Code a potential fine. It's a matter of the

          8  way that we promulgate the Health Code information

          9  to the community and the follow-up that we do. It is

         10  very clear that we have underreporting across a

         11  whole variety of conditions. You know, we recognize,

         12  for example, when we were concerned about reporting

         13  encephalitis and meningitis that nationally there is

         14  great underreporting of these conditions to the

         15  Health Department, and in those cases where we

         16  recognize immediate potential public health impact,

         17  we put in place active surveillance. So, we are not

         18  sitting back just waiting for phone calls, but we

         19  are actually sort of reaching out to physicians in

         20  the community who are most likely to be seeing the

         21  cases that are of greatest concern to us. With West

         22  Nile virus, that was infectious disease,

         23  neurologists, emergency room docs, people who then

         24  would be receiving faxes from us, phone calls from

         25  us, and our outreach public health nurses would be
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          2  speaking to them. We anticipate we will be doing the

          3  same thing in the community that is most likely to

          4  be managing cases of dementia, that would include

          5  neurologists and geriatricians, and long-term care

          6  providers, to ensure that the reporting is solid and

          7  it is within the range of what we would find

          8  acceptable. So, we will do that in an active way by

          9  going forward.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         11                 Commissioner, again, thank you so

         12  much for the time you have given to us, and, of

         13  course, I will be seeing you pretty soon on the

         14  budget hearings.

         15                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. All

         17  right, what we are going to do is that since the

         18  Commissioner mentioned that someone is in here from

         19  the New York Blood Center, I think in fairness to

         20  follow the hearing, we will call upon that person,

         21  and then we are going to have, I will call it a

         22  team, there are three people that I believe should

         23  be together, which they have been invited by Council

         24  Member Fiala. I think that because it is going to be

         25  generally dealing with the subject matter that
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          2  started all of this, maybe we will bring them

          3  together as a group.

          4                 Mr. Robert Jones, is it?

          5                 DR. JONES: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The New York

          7  Blood Center, correct?

          8                 DR. JONES: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Push the button

         10  to your mike.

         11                 DR. JONES: Thank you.

         12                 I am Dr. Robert Jones. I am President

         13  of the New York Blood Center, and I want to bring to

         14  you, the Council, just another slant on this

         15  worrisome problem that we have been talking about.

         16                 As a physician I am certainly

         17  concerned about any new illnesses that could be

         18  transmitted by any route, and my job, though, is

         19  certainly specifically to be worried about diseases

         20  that might be transmitted by blood transfusions.

         21                 So, I have presented to you, I will

         22  talk briefly from a statement that I have put

         23  together here, and I have entitled it Impending

         24  Medical Care Crisis in the New York Area because

         25  there are some very, very special circumstances that
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          2  exist in this area that don't necessarily exist in

          3  other parts of the United States.

          4                 The New York City area has been

          5  historically dependent on red blood cells from

          6  Holland, Switzerland and Germany through an FDA

          7  regulated and monitored program we call Euroblood,

          8  as has been previously pointed out. Although the

          9  dependency in this program has declined over the

         10  last three years this supply currently accounts for

         11  close to 25 percent of our transfusion needs.

         12                 The emergence of BSE, mad cow

         13  disease, in Europe has produced anxiety that the

         14  human form, variant CJD, as we discussed earlier,

         15  might be transmitted via blood transfusion from

         16  blood donors who are infected by eating infected

         17  beef. Currently, as has been pointed out, there is

         18  no scientific and certainly no epidemiologic

         19  evidence to support this fear, and I would just

         20  mention at this point in time that there have been

         21  20 of those diagnosed in England who were blood

         22  donors. The recipients of those blood transfusions

         23  have been followed for a period of I believe up to

         24  ten years at this point in time and no evidence of

         25  CJD transmission has been observed.
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          2                 The FDA's scientific committee

          3  designated to monitor this situation recently

          4  determined that there is no need to defer blood

          5  donors who traveled to or reside in the Euroblood

          6  countries. France was mentioned, but the Euroblood

          7  countries at this point in time are Holland,

          8  Switzerland and Germany.

          9                 Nevertheless, as also was previously

         10  mentioned, the American Red Cross proposes deferral

         11  policies that, if adopted by FDA, will eliminate the

         12  Euroblood supply for New York and severely reduce

         13  our donor base in the metropolitan area because so

         14  many of our donors are European travelers, not to

         15  mention immigrants and others.

         16                 We calculate that our overall supply

         17  could be reduced by as much as one-third. The result

         18  would be that 6,000 transfusions per month, or as

         19  many as 200 per day that are currently saving lives

         20  in the New York City area, will not take place.

         21                 National inventories of blood have

         22  been becoming progressively shorter for several

         23  years due to increasing demand for transfusions and

         24  a decreasing donor base. There is currently no US

         25  supply that could compensate for the losses that
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          2  will result if such a policy is implemented, and

          3  certainly if it is implemented abruptly. In fact,

          4  with this deferral policy or one like it, the

          5  nation's current levels of whole blood donations

          6  will acutely contract by 10 to 12 percent, thus

          7  causing a nationwide shortage to compound the New

          8  York area problem.

          9                 This is a complex issue, as we have

         10  already heard, and in this case weighs the

         11  theoretical risk of transmission of this disease

         12  with the very real risk of an already inadequate

         13  blood supply being made catastrophically worse by a

         14  sudden and large drop in our existing donation base,

         15  including Euroblood.

         16                 The FDA and the Department of Health

         17  and Human Services will soon act on this matter. We

         18  urge that any new government guidance for blood

         19  donations on this issue carefully consider patient

         20  safety in the context of an already fragile blood

         21  supply.

         22                 It is widely held in blood banking

         23  circles that the nation's blood supply cannot

         24  withstand the shock of sudden substantial reduction

         25  without threatening the lives of hospitalized
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          2  patients, both in the New York area and nationwide

          3  as well.

          4                 Therefore, we urge the Council to

          5  advise federal officials that we wish to balance the

          6  risk of any new implementation of blood referral

          7  policies with the dangers of patients in hospitals,

          8  and as always, we take this opportunity to encourage

          9  more and more blood donations by New Yorkers, I am

         10  happy to say that Staten Island, on a per capita

         11  basis, is a very strong blood donating area, and as

         12  always, we also would say, give blood and save a

         13  neighbor.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Dr. Jones, let me

         15  just say that I think you were in the room when I

         16  first opened up the hearing, and, again, one of the

         17  things that this Committee would want to do after it

         18  was all said and done is perhaps to evaluate all the

         19  tests when particular recommendations are being made

         20  so that we can perhaps follow through. Any

         21  suggestions that you believe could be helpful to us,

         22  I suggest you get it to our counsel, Judith

         23  MacFarlane, because we will then follow through, and

         24  if need be, not only the federal government, but

         25  whoever is a player, we will be more than happy that
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          2  at least the Council, through a resolution, sets the

          3  tone and sends a statement.

          4                 Thank you so much. We appreciate it,

          5  sir.

          6                 We have Dr. W. Ted Brown, Dr. Richard

          7  Rubenstein and Elaine Marchi, and I believe they all

          8  are with the New York State Institute for Basic

          9  Research in Developmental Disabilities. And before I

         10  ask you to start to testify, let me just say Ms.

         11  Marchi, that name, you don't have to live in Staten

         12  Island to know the name, because I served with a

         13  Senator Marchi from Staten Island. Is there any

         14  relationship?

         15                 MS. MARCHI: An uncle.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Perhaps you can

         17  deliver a message to him. I was privileged to

         18  serving with him in the State Assembly, he was in

         19  the State Senate, and I found him to always be a

         20  gentleman, and, you know, every time when he says,

         21  well, when you turn to the other aisle, and

         22  especially in the Senate, you don't find friends, I

         23  will tell you that I have turned to him on many

         24  occasions and if it was not the affiliation that he

         25  carried, it was the gentleman he was. So, please
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          2  send him my profound regards and best wishes,

          3  because, again, I served proudly with him when I was

          4  in the Assembly and he was in the State Senate.

          5                 MS. MARCHI: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: As I said, I

          7  don't want people to always think only in Staten

          8  Island they know a Marchi.

          9                 MS. MARCHI: If I could do the

         10  introductions? Today you have heard a variety of

         11  statements by a variety of representatives from

         12  different agencies, and right now we are going to

         13  take you back to the basics. You may or may not be

         14  aware of this, but in New York City, on the Borough

         15  of Staten Island, we have a jewel in the crown, and

         16  the jewel in the crown is the Institute for Basic

         17  Research and Developmental Disabilities. Dr. Ted

         18  Brown is the Interim Director, he is an M.D., Ph.D,

         19  he is a human geneticist. It's a research component

         20  of the Office of Mental Retardation, it has 12

         21  research departments organized into 50 specialized

         22  labs.

         23                 When this issue first came to

         24  surface, we were contacted by Councilman Fiala, who

         25  quietly came to the Institute, and he wanted to
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          2  know, he wanted background on what were the points

          3  of the issues, and we held a roundtable with our

          4  research scientists.

          5                 We are very fortunate, of the 12

          6  departments, one of the departments is the

          7  Department of Neurology, and we have Dr. Richard

          8  Rubenstein with us, and we have prepared two little

          9  things that we have handed out to you. One

         10  represents the information, explained in very

         11  scientific terms, you will see reprints by Dr.

         12  Rubenstein and other colleagues in his department,

         13  and the other is a lay explanation that we had a

         14  representative from the press come to the Institute

         15  and it went out on AP wire.

         16                 Dr. Brown, Dr. Rubenstein.

         17                 DR. BROWN: Thank you for inviting us

         18  to be present to answer questions. I want to just

         19  give a little background.

         20                 The Institute for Basic Research has

         21  been interested in prion diseases for 25 years, and

         22  we have one of the outstanding laboratories in the

         23  country, one of the very few that have this

         24  historical perspective. Infections we know can cause

         25  developmental disabilities, CMV and rubella are
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          2  known to cause mental retardation, so the Institute,

          3  which has its primary mission to study the causes of

          4  mental retardation, has long been interested in

          5  infectious processes, and this disease is a novel

          6  infectious process and that was recognized early on

          7  by this team and they have devoted a considerable

          8  energy to studying the scientific basis for this,

          9  and it is only recently that it has become of great

         10  interest because of the mad cow disease and the

         11  tremendous implications that that has, but I think

         12  it is something that we can be proud of here in New

         13  York that this is a center where we have been

         14  focused on a disease that is now very important.

         15                 I am going to turn it over to Dr.

         16  Rubenstein.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I heard what was

         18  said here, and just out of curiosity, since you have

         19  this jewel in Staten Island, what is the

         20  relationship between the jewel and the Department of

         21  Health, since you can be very helpful to them? And

         22  not only what they have currently, but perhaps

         23  enhance, and I am just curious if you have an

         24  answer?

         25                 DR. BROWN: We are the research arm of
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          2  the State Office of Mental Retardation and

          3  Developmental Disabilities, as such we are primarily

          4  a state operation.

          5                 We have interactions. They come to

          6  visit, they come to perform certification of our

          7  laboratories. We don't have any ongoing testing

          8  program, though we can provide expertise and

          9  information.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         11                 DR. BROWN: This is Richard

         12  Rubenstein.

         13                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: We have been working

         14  in the transmissible spongiform encephalopathies

         15  probably for the last 25 years, and we have studied

         16  different aspects of these diseases, the genetic

         17  aspects of the diseases, transmissible access of

         18  these diseases, biochemical access of these

         19  diseases, immunological aspects, trying to develop

         20  diagnostic tests. So, we have a multidisciplinary

         21  field with regard to the prion diseases, and we have

         22  been working very, very actively in the diseases

         23  long before mad cow disease became known.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But, again, I am

         25  going to follow, if Council Member Fiala can turn to
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          2  you because of his concern and what he read, and was

          3  able to turn to you, again, my question is -- is

          4  anybody still here from the Department of Health?

          5                 You are. Would you please pay

          6  attention to where I am coming from? If a Council

          7  Member can turn to, even though you are

          8  state-related, whatever you want to call it, because

          9  he wanted or he knew that they had perhaps the kind

         10  of data and professional research teams that could

         11  help him, one, what I would like to know, and not

         12  now, but I need to know from Neal Cohen, one, do you

         13  know they exist? And, two, how can we use them?

         14  Because we are discussing mad cow today, yesterday

         15  it was St. Louis, tomorrow it may be timbuck II. So,

         16  we don't need to go outside of our City of New York

         17  if we have something within the borders of New York

         18  City, and I just need to know, is there any kind of

         19  relationship or any kind of ongoing working

         20  relationship, or at least find out what is it that

         21  you really do that can help us?

         22                 And, so, I would appreciate you

         23  getting back to me, and if need be, maybe you should

         24  meet to sit down with them.

         25                 Okay, Council Member Fiala.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Mr. Chairman, I

          3  want the Committee to be aware of the fact that I

          4  invited this panel here because I have done work

          5  with them in other areas, and through your

          6  leadership we are also doing, the first one, the

          7  first City officials to actually last year fund a

          8  autism study, which is being done at this institute.

          9  So, there is a lot of work going on.

         10                 What I wanted to do was to invite the

         11  doctors here, because they provided me with a lot of

         12  information and were able to speak to me in layman's

         13  terms. If I could ask you to set up for the

         14  Chairman, the thing about this disease, having a

         15  panel like yourselves here, such esteem, is where do

         16  we go from here? What steps can we take as a City

         17  Legislature that will help us in the future?

         18                 One of the things that we talked

         19  about was there is no antibody detection. Now,

         20  something that is happening at the Institute is they

         21  are trying to develop protocols and trying to

         22  develop a mechanism, a noninvasive procedure

         23  so-to-speak; could you enlighten us as to what is

         24  going on there, and how far out you think we are?

         25  And bring up the whole tonsil issue that you brought
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          2  up with me, because that puts everything in a

          3  perspective.

          4                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: All right. One of the

          5  many things we are doing is trying to develop a

          6  diagnostic for these, like take blood samples, for

          7  example, and try to diagnose this unusual form of

          8  the prion protein, which is a marker for all of

          9  these prion diseases. The problem with diagnosing in

         10  blood is that you find very little, if none of this

         11  PRP, its this unusual form with the prion protein in

         12  blood, so you have to develop novel techniques to

         13  even attempt to do those kind of studies.

         14                 So, we have many things going on. We

         15  have antibodies, we have developed antibodies to the

         16  prion protein, but the prion protein -- it's a very

         17  complicated field -- the prion protein is a normal

         18  host protein that takes on a different conformation

         19  during the infectious process. The antibodies that

         20  are available react with both, the normal form of

         21  the protein and the abnormal protein -- and the

         22  abnormal form of the protein equally. So, one of the

         23  many things we are trying to do is to develop an

         24  antibody that is specific for the abnormal form of

         25  the protein.
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          2                 In terms of the tonsil issue, there

          3  has been reports that vCJD, variant CJD, can be

          4  detected by finding the abnormal form of the prion

          5  protein in tonsils, whereas, the other forms of CJD,

          6  sporadic form, the iatragenic form, the familial

          7  form, does not have PRP SC in tonsils. So, had you

          8  had tonsils to look at, and you found PRP SC, the

          9  abnormal form of protein in tonsils, based on

         10  previous data by others, you can say that this

         11  person had a vCJD.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Finally, if you

         13  could explain to us in layman's terms, one of the

         14  things that we talked about were species barrier,

         15  the barrier between mad cow and human was much

         16  smaller. I am checking my notes here from our talk,

         17  the elk and the deer, they had incubation periods

         18  that were much lower than what we are dealing with

         19  here. Can you give us a little synapsis on that

         20  whole scenario so that we understand what we are

         21  dealing with? We have reached a higher threshold, it

         22  seems, in this, with the mad cow as opposed to

         23  scrapies and what we had --

         24                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: Well, one of the

         25  phenomenons in these prion diseases is a phenomenon

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            129

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  that is species barrier. And what species barrier

          3  means is that if you are trying to transmit a prion

          4  disease from one species to another, on first

          5  passage into the new species it is very resistant to

          6  transmission. It takes a much longer incubation

          7  period than if the disease was stable in that new

          8  species.

          9                 BSE doesn't follow all the rules,

         10  "rules" that we know of these prion diseases, in

         11  which BSE is much more promiscuous that is, it

         12  doesn't really have the species barrier that is

         13  known for all the other prion diseases. It passes

         14  from one species to another fairly easily. There is

         15  still a very long incubation period, but had a

         16  species barrier been in place, it would have been

         17  that much longer on first passage into the new

         18  species.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It just hit me.

         20  Let me make sure, and I am glad I still do see the

         21  Department of Health, and let me again just repeat,

         22  this Council, because we believed before St. Louis,

         23  and what was it called before St. Louis? There was

         24  another, allegedly it was something before St.

         25  Louis, because West Nile was the last. And do you
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          2  know how that came about? Because this Council

          3  believed that we needed to put money into research

          4  to help people to do the kind of things that needed

          5  to be done, and I have to tell you that it was a

          6  doctor at the Bronx Zoo who received funding from

          7  this appropriation of funds that realized, and went

          8  to the CDC and to the State and the City saying I

          9  think you better look at this, because I don't think

         10  you have St. Louis, I think you have something else,

         11  and that is how we then find out that now it is West

         12  Nile.

         13                 I tell you, I am sitting here and I

         14  am baffled because in last year's budget, this year,

         15  last year this year, $10 million was appropriated by

         16  this Council for research. And, so, I want to make

         17  sure that, one, here is what I am hearing, and I am

         18  glad DOH is still here. And if I heard you

         19  correctly, Dr. Rubenstein, correct?

         20                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Here is what you

         22  said: If you listened to Commissioner Neal Cohen, a

         23  person dies and you will then through an autopsy

         24  find out whether or not what allegedly we have been

         25  discussing here, which I think is CJD which is in
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          2  humans, not mad cow, which is something different,

          3  correct? Now you come here and you say, and I want

          4  you to listen to this, and I want to be sure I heard

          5  correctly, because I don't have the credentials in

          6  front and in back of my name like you do, but,

          7  again, I have been here for 17 years, thank God, so

          8  the people of my district must find something in me

          9  that keep sending me here, with the exception with

         10  term limits, then I will find something else.

         11                 You said that if a person who is not

         12  dead, is still alive, but has tonsils, you can

         13  determine, or at least ascertain whether that person

         14  suffers from or is a victim of CJD in humans; is

         15  that what I heard you say?

         16                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: What I said was that

         17  if you take the tonsils from the person, the living

         18  person --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: From a person who

         20  is living.

         21                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: Who is living, all

         22  right? Who is far along in the disease -- you see,

         23  it depends also on where along in the disease this

         24  person is because it has such a long incubation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just make
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          2  sure I understand. So, in someone who may have the

          3  symptoms, while still alive, can be tested if

          4  tonsils are still with them; is that fair?

          5                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: That's correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you can then

          7  through that determine or ascertain that person's

          8  condition; is that what you are saying to me?

          9                 DR. RUBENSTEIN: If the person had

         10  vCJD, the new variant form of CJD, PRP SC, the

         11  abnormal form of prion protein, has been found in

         12  the tonsils of those patients. If the person had

         13  sporadic iatrogenic familial CJD, the tonsils have

         14  never been a source for the abnormal form of the

         15  protein.

         16                 We have looked at biopsy material. We

         17  have gotten in biopsy material at various times from

         18  hospitals, a biopsy, not autopsy material, and with

         19  the question does the patient have CJD or not, And

         20  sporadic CJD or iatrogenic, familial, if you find

         21  the prion protein in biopsied material, that person

         22  has CJD. It could be any of the forms. The brain is

         23  where you find the highest concentration of that

         24  protein.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say
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          2  something again, and I thank you, because I am

          3  learning something here. Let me just instruct the

          4  Counsel to this Committee, and I see DOH here and

          5  you, can we coordinate a meeting between DOH and

          6  this group to discuss this? And I want a report back

          7  on what the outcome is.

          8                 Because, again, I guess this hearing

          9  and what we are trying to do is find all of the

         10  mechanisms possible to have the checks and balances,

         11  especially as we are still operating with the

         12  unknown; is that fair to say?

         13                 DR. BROWN: That's right. I think as

         14  Dr. Rubenstein mentioned, there is a potential test

         15  he is talking about for mad cow disease, it is

         16  positive if it is variant CJD, it is negative if it

         17  is regular CJD. It would allow the Department of

         18  Health to test for a suspected case of variant CJD

         19  in a living person.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, that's why

         21  I think that this discussion is higher than I can

         22  address, and that is why I am saying that it would

         23  be helpful if the Department of Health, along with

         24  you, perhaps sit down and go over what you have

         25  discovered and what you have done, and see if they
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          2  have not, how can we then work together.

          3                 DOH, is that fair, try to sit with

          4  them and go over it all? Because what is being said

          5  here is completely different from what was said when

          6  the State and the City, at least I got the

          7  impression, and, again, I am a layperson, I got the

          8  impression that until someone dies and have this

          9  autopsy, is when you would find out what caused his

         10  death or her death. I think that is what I heard.

         11                 You now come before us and say, no,

         12  folks, if you have the symptoms, the person is still

         13  alive and they have the tonsils, you can do a

         14  procedure that can determine, and, again,

         15  professionally and what have you, I understand what

         16  you are trying to say, there are certain parameters

         17  that you have to meet, and that is why I believe

         18  that maybe one thing that has come out of this is

         19  having you and the agency meet and go over it, and

         20  maybe they are looking at something that they -- you

         21  may have something that they may not be aware of,

         22  and perhaps connect, and that is what I am trying to

         23  do. I am not saying that you are right, you are

         24  wrong, you know, I am not the professional.

         25                 So, why don't we follow up on that,
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          2  and maybe if I need to make sure that this happens.

          3                 Council Member Fiala.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: The hour is

          5  long, Mr. Chairman, and I wanted to thank my friends

          6  from the Institute for attending. I have enormous

          7  respect for them and I wanted them to attend for a

          8  number of reasons, one is to shed some light on this

          9  subject. And it is exciting, as a layperson I am

         10  excited by the potential that exists.

         11                 I also wanted them to come before you

         12  firsthand so that when you always leading the charge

         13  defend that biomedical fund, this is what goes on

         14  with funding like that, and I would like to see us

         15  direct some funding to the Institute because it is a

         16  crown jewel in New York State and we have it on

         17  Staten Island.

         18                 There are so many wonderful things

         19  taking shape and taking place in these labs, they

         20  are so futuristic in their approach, and it is just

         21  about, as you just said, coordinating them with the

         22  day in and day out operations, because it is that

         23  lack of coordination which may lead us to go down a

         24  road that we don't have to go down.

         25                 So, we would love the opportunity to
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          2  invite you out there to visit firsthand, to visit

          3  the labs and get a better feel for what we are

          4  talking about.

          5                 And I would finally, because you were

          6  here the whole time and you waited so long, is there

          7  anything you would like to say to us? Is there

          8  anything that we have misspoke of or any testimony

          9  that was given that was so glaringly wrong that you

         10  take exception to that you want to correct for us?

         11  Anything you want us to go away with knowing?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Anybody but me.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Anybody but the

         14  Chairman.

         15                 DR. BROWN: I think it was a very fair

         16  session. We realize we are sort of at the beginning

         17  of a new era, as we were at the beginning of the

         18  AIDS epidemic, and there is a lot of misinformation,

         19  and this is a part of the process of informing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The same thing

         21  with the West Nile.

         22                 DR. BROWN: Yes, and the West Nile.

         23  So, we appreciate the support you have given to us

         24  in the past for the autism research. We appreciate

         25  this opportunity to come before you today to help
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          2  mutually educate ourselves about the problem.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I think it is so

          4  important, and I want to echo and I want to thank

          5  the Council member, because he is right, I had a

          6  problem. Even though, and the only reason why we

          7  were able to put back the $10 million into the

          8  budget for this research was because in the

          9  beginning when we first put it, I will tell you, a

         10  lot of my colleagues wanted to know why we were

         11  spending money, that huge money, that way, when

         12  there are a lot of services being cut by the

         13  Administration, that we should take that money and

         14  pump it there. And it was the West Nile syndrome

         15  that enabled us, because we showed that money was

         16  not wasted, rather it is that kind of research, that

         17  money that does research, that sometimes helps us

         18  more in the longrun than in the shortrun.

         19                 DR. BROWN: Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, I must tell

         21  you, my frustration as the Chairman of this

         22  Committee is, you are right, there are a lot of

         23  jewels within the City of New York that we are not

         24  even aware of, and that's why I thank my colleague

         25  for bringing you to us, and I hope to follow
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          2  through, because I may not be around, but he will,

          3  and then the burden is on him to make sure they

          4  don't forget you.

          5                 So, let me tell you that of the -- it

          6  was $20 million cut, now it's $19 million, but of

          7  the $19 million cut, $10 million is that research

          8  fund. And, so, anything that will help us to

          9  educate, forget the public, our own members of the

         10  Council, that while that number may be -- because

         11  research does cost money, just like this, what I

         12  said, the unknown, you also start with the unknown.

         13  But along the way you stumble or you find upon

         14  something, like the polio vaccine that in the

         15  beginning it was the unknown, and today, you know,

         16  our hope is while we haven't found a cure for HIV

         17  and AIDS, but we have found at least medication that

         18  prolongs or helps someone, and, so, research to me

         19  is very important because I have seen more than once

         20  the results of research.

         21                 So, I want to personally thank you

         22  for your patience and being here. And, yes, Council

         23  Member Fiala, you work with Judith after the budget,

         24  maybe during the summertime when we have this, not

         25  break in terms of, because we have to go back to our
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          2  districts and continue to work, but I would be more

          3  than happy to visit your facility and see for myself

          4  firsthand.

          5                 DR. BROWN: We would love to have you

          6  visit.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, thank you

          8  so much for joining us.

          9                 DR. BROWN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         11  Fiala, I want to again personally thank you on

         12  behalf of myself and the Speaker in bringing this

         13  resolution before us. Again, I want to make sure

         14  people understand this is not, it does not end when

         15  I close the hearing. This is an area that will be

         16  with us for some time, and we will follow through.

         17  Now it is our job to take whatever we receive and

         18  analyze it.

         19                 Let me thank, again, Judith

         20  MacFarlane, my Counsel, but also the people of our

         21  Investigation Unit, Eric and Sarah and Greg, also I

         22  want to thank Ricca, I guess it should become one

         23  that I want to say thank you, but I want to thank

         24  you because whatever this hearing was or we got out

         25  of it is because of behind the scenes the work that
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          2  these people do. So, thank you so much.

          3                 Seeing no other business, I close

          4  this hearing.

          5                 (The following testimony was read

          6  into the record.)

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Dr. Craig A. Reed

         10  Administrator

         11  Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service

         12  United States Department of Agriculture

         13

         14                 Mr. Chairman and members of the

         15  Committee, I thank you for this opportunity to

         16  testify on behalf of the U.S. Department of

         17  Agriculture (USDA) and my agency, the Animal and

         18  Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS), on the

         19  activities that USDA conducts to prevent the

         20  introduction of bovine spongiform encephalopathy

         21  (BSE) into the United States.

         22                 BSE, widely referred to as "mad cow

         23  disease," is a chronic degenerative disease

         24  affecting the central nervous system of cattle. The

         25  disease was first diagnosed in 1986 in Great
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          2  Britain. As you know, BSE has had a substantial

          3  impact on the livestock industry in the United

          4  Kingdom. The disease also has been confirmed in

          5  native-born cattle in Belgium, Denmark, Germany,

          6  Ireland, Italy, Liechtenstein, Luxembourg, the

          7  Netherlands, Northern Ireland, Portugal, Spain and

          8  Switzerland. APHIS is enforcing import restrictions

          9  and is conducting surveillance for BSE to ensure

         10  that this serious disease does not become

         11  established in the United States.

         12                 BSE is classified as a transmissible

         13  spongiform encephalopathy (TSE). The agent

         14  responsible for BSE has not been completely

         15  characterized. Other TSEs include scrapie (which

         16  affects sheep and goats), transmissible mink

         17  encephalopathy, feline spongiform encephalopathy,

         18  and chronic wasting disease of deer and elk. In

         19  humans, TSEs include kuru, Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease

         20  (CJD), Gerstmann Straussler-Scheinker syndrome,

         21  fatal familial insomnia, and variant CJD, which has

         22  been linked to BSE.

         23                 In cooperation with USDA's Food

         24  Safety and Inspection Service (FSIS), APHIS has

         25  taken comprehensive and stringent measures for
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          2  prevention, education, surveillance, and response.

          3  To prevent BSE from entering the country, APHIS has

          4  prohibited the importation of live ruminants from

          5  countries where BSE is known to exist in native

          6  cattle since 1989. Other products derived from

          7  ruminants, such as fetal bovine serum, bonemeal,

          8  meat-and-bone meal, bloodmeal, offal, fats, and

          9  glands, are also prohibited from entry, except under

         10  special conditions or under USDA permit for

         11  scientific or research purposes.

         12                 On December 12, 1997, APHIS extended

         13  these restrictions to include all of the countries

         14  in Europe due to concerns about widespread risk

         15  factors and inadequate surveillance for BSE.

         16                 As of December 7, 2000, USDA

         17  prohibited all imports of rendered animal protein

         18  products, regardless of species, from Europe.

         19                 This decision followed the

         20  determination by the European Union that feed of

         21  nonruminant origin was potentially

         22  cross-contaminated with the BSE agent. The

         23  restriction applies to products originating,

         24  rendered, processed or otherwise associated with

         25  European products. USDA took this emergency action
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          2  to prevent potentially cross-contaminated products

          3  from entering the United States. The same type of

          4  rendered product from ruminant origin has been

          5  prohibited from BSE-infected countries since 1989.

          6                 USDA also works very closely with

          7  other federal agencies involved in the prevention of

          8  BSE introduction. For example, for the past five

          9  years, USDA agencies have worked closely with the

         10  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services'

         11  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National

         12  Institutes of Health, and Food and Drug

         13  Administration on technical issues regarding TSEs.

         14                 APHIS officials work with

         15  representatives from these other federal agencies

         16  and our Canadian and Mexican counterparts on the

         17  Tripartite TSE Working Group.

         18                 As part of USDA's surveillance

         19  program for BSE in the United States, pathologists

         20  at APHIS' National Veterinary Services Laboratories

         21  (NVSL) in Ames, Iowa, histopathologically examine

         22  the brains of these suspect animals for signs of

         23  BSE. Specifically, samples are tested using a

         24  technique called immunohistochemistry, which tests

         25  for the presence of the protease-resistant prion
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          2  protein, an indication marker for BSE. NVSL also

          3  examines samples from neurologically ill cattle and

          4  nonambulatory (downer) cattle identified on the farm

          5  or at slaughter and from cattle submitted to

          6  veterinary diagnostic laboratories and teaching

          7  hospitals that tested negative for rabies.

          8                 In addition, veterinary field

          9  pathologists and field investigators from APHIS and

         10  FSIS have received training from their British

         11  counterparts in diagnosing BSE. FSIS officials

         12  inspect cattle before they go to slaughter; the

         13  inspection procedures include identifying animals

         14  with central nervous system conditions. Animals with

         15  such conditions are considered suspect for BSE,

         16  prohibited from slaughter, and referred to APHIS for

         17  examination. As of March 31, 2001, the brains from

         18  12,341 animals in the United States and Puerto Rico

         19  had been examined with no evidence of BSE or other

         20  TSEs detected.

         21                 APHIS also monitors the remaining

         22  cattle imported from Great Britain, Belgium, and

         23  other European countries before the bans on imports

         24  from those countries went into effect. As of March

         25  31, 2001, of the 496 cattle imported from Great
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          2  Britain and Ireland between 1981 and 1989, four

          3  animals were still alive. The animals are

          4  quarantined and observed regularly. APHIS continues

          5  to attempt to purchase the four live animals for

          6  diagnostic research purposes. The six European

          7  cattle imported in 1996-97 that are still alive are

          8  currently under quarantine, and APHIS is attempting

          9  to buy these animals as well.

         10                 There were also two flocks of sheep

         11  imported from Belgium and the Netherlands in 1996

         12  that were under State quarantine in Vermont since

         13  October 19098 due to probable TSE exposure.

         14                 Four sheep from one of the flocks

         15  have tested positive for an atypical TSE of foreign

         16  origin. There is no simple test to determine whether

         17  the sheep are infected with BSE or another TSE, such

         18  as a European strain of scrapie - a TSE that affects

         19  sheep and goats. Nevertheless, it is highly likely

         20  that the animals were exposed to feed contaminated

         21  with the agent that causes BSE before they left

         22  Europe.

         23                 The owner of an additional flock that

         24  contained female progeny from these imported sheep

         25  sold his entire heard to USDA in July 2000. On July

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            146

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH/FEDERAL AFFAIRS

          2  21, 2000, former Secretary of Agriculture Dan

          3  Glickman issued a Declaration of Extraordinary

          4  Emergency authorizing the seizure of the two

          5  imported flocks.

          6                 However, the owners of these flocks

          7  contested the decision and sought to have the

          8  seizure blocked through the legal system. On

          9  February 6, 2001, the U.S. District Court for the

         10  District of Vermont ruled that the owners of the

         11  flocks must comply with the Declaration of

         12  Extraordinary Emergency and surrender the sheep to

         13  USDA. The owners subsequently filed an appeal with

         14  the 2nd Circuit Court of Appeals in which the

         15  original decision was upheld. USDA took the first

         16  flock on March 21, 2001, and the second flock on

         17  March 23, 2001. The sheep have been euthanized,

         18  samples for further diagnostic tests were taken, and

         19  the carcasses were disposed of in a safe manner.

         20                 APHIS, in cooperation with FSIS, has

         21  also drafted an emergency response plan to be used

         22  in the event that BSE is identified in United

         23  States. The plan details comprehensive instructions

         24  for USDA staff as to who is to do what, when, where,

         25  and how in the case of such an emergency. USDA has
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          2  also shared this plan with the U.S. Department of

          3  Health and Human Service's Food and Drug

          4  Administration (FDA), Centers for Disease Control

          5  and Prevention, and the National Institutes of

          6  Health, as well as other stakeholders such as the

          7  Animal Agriculture Coalition.

          8                 In 1998, USDA entered into a

          9  cooperative agreement with Harvard University's

         10  School of Public Health to analyze and evaluate the

         11  Department's measures to prevent an introduction of

         12  BSE. The Harvard study, which is expected to be

         13  completed in the next few months, reviews current

         14  scientific information, assesses the pathways that

         15  BSE could potentially enter the United States, and

         16  identifies any additional measures that could be

         17  taken to protect human and animal health.

         18                 APHIS' TSE Working Group monitors and

         19  assesses all ongoing events and research findings

         20  regarding TSEs. APHIS continually revises and

         21  adjusts prevention and diagnostic measures as it

         22  receives new information and knowledge.

         23                 As an additional preventive measure,

         24  APHIS supports the FDA regulation (effective August

         25  4, 1997) prohibiting the use of most mammalian
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          2  protein in the manufacture of animal feeds given to

          3  ruminants. The final regulation also requires

          4  process and control systems to ensure that ruminant

          5  feed does not contain the prohibited mammalian

          6  tissues.

          7                 While BSE has never been diagnosed in

          8  the United States, other TSEs do occur in this

          9  country. For example, scrapie has been reported in

         10  the United States primarily in the Suffolk breed. It

         11  is important to note that there is no scientific

         12  evidence to indicate that scrapie poses a risk to

         13  human health or can be transmitted to humans.

         14                 In 1952, the Secretary of Agriculture

         15  declared a state of emergency in an attempt to

         16  eradicate scrapie in the United States. Although

         17  that goal has not yet been achieved, USDA continues

         18  to identify and attempt to eradicate this disease.

         19                 The Scrapie Flock Certification

         20  Program, implemented on October 1, 1992, is a

         21  cooperative effort among producers, allied industry

         22  representatives, accredited veterinarians, State

         23  animal health officials and APHIS officials. The

         24  program provides participating producers with the

         25  opportunity to protect their sheep from scrapie and
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          2  enhance the marketability of their animals through

          3  certifying their origin in scrapie-free flocks. In

          4  addition, APHIS restricts the interstate movement of

          5  sheep from scrapie-infected and source flocks.

          6                 Chronic wasting disease (CWD) is a

          7  TSE of deer and elk that has occurred only in

          8  limited areas in the Western United States. First

          9  recognized as a clinical syndrome in 1967, it is

         10  typified by chronic weight loss leading to death. To

         11  date, there is no known relationship between CWD and

         12  any other naturally occurring spongiform

         13  encephalopathy of animals or people. Further

         14  research continues in this area.

         15                 Surveillance for CWD in Colorado and

         16  Wyoming has been ongoing since 1983, and to date has

         17  confirmed the limits of the endemic areas in those

         18  states. An extensive nationwide surveillance effort

         19  was started in 1997-'98 to better define the

         20  geographic distribution of CWD. This ongoing

         21  surveillance effort is a two-pronged approach

         22  consisting of hunter-harvest cervid surveys

         23  conducted in Arizona, Colorado, Idaho, Kansas,

         24  Maine, Michigan, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New

         25  Jersey, Oklahoma, South Dakota, Utah, and Wyoming,
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          2  as well as surveillance throughout the entire

          3  country targeting deer and elk exhibiting clinical

          4  signs suggestive of CWD.

          5                 As in the past, APHIS remains

          6  committed to preventing the introduction,

          7  establishment, and spread of foreign animal diseases

          8  such as BSE. APHIS is enforcing stringent import

          9  restrictions and is conducting a comprehensive

         10  surveillance program to ensure that BSE does not

         11  become established in the United States.

         12                 USDA will continue to take every

         13  action possible, including prevention, preparedness,

         14  response, and recovery measures, to safeguard

         15  domestic livestock and the U.S. Food supply from

         16  this serious disease. Again, I would like to thank

         17  the Chairman and members of the Committee for

         18  granting me this opportunity to explain APHIS' key

         19  role in addressing issues involving BSE.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 4:05 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 30th day of April 2001.

         20
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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